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Financial Highlights
B2

RMB’000 2022 2021
AR®F R o Ik
Revenue EER 246,341 273,604
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (153,822) (174,573)
Gross profit EH 92,519 99,031
Selling & distribution costs HE ko AR (83,507) (84,307)
Administrative expenses THAX (32,379) (29,345)
Operating loss KEEE (17,333) (7,634)
Loss before taxation A8 (19,431) (9,084
Income tax expense Fris B 2 — —
Loss for the year attributable to RAREBE ANEIEZ

owners of the Company FREIE (19,431) (9,084)
Gross margin EFE 37.6% 36.2%
Net loss ratio FEBBE (7.9%) (3.3%)
Loss per share (RMB cents) BREE (AR
Basic HAK (0.6144) (0.2872)
Diluted i (0.6144) (0.2872)
Revenue by Product Category
WARERER D

85.7% 84.9%

0%

Shampoo & hair-care products

REERER

HittRAREAEEER

Other household & personal care products

Skincare products

EEEm

Total
att
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

MBHRE(E)
Revenue by Brand Category
WARBBER D
96.5% 95.2%

2.3%

0% 0%

s

Bawang
RS

Litao
BE
Royal Wind
B

Herborn

FEE

Others
Hit

Total
att
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NEIEH(E)
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Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), |
present the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Directors report that the total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB246.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.0% from approximately
RMB273.6 million for 2021. The operating loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB17.3 million
as compared with an operating loss of approximately RMB7.5 million
for 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB19.4 million, as compared with a net loss of
approximately RMB9.1 million for 2021.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FTREHREE(E)

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.

For further information on the outlook of the Group, please refer to
the “Outlook” section of this report.

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to control the cost of sales and operating costs at a sustainable level.

In late January 2023, the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) revised
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth prediction for 2023
from 4.4% in October 2022 to 5.2%, but the growth would fall to 4.5%
in 2024 because of declining business dynamism and slow progress
on structural reform.

The actual China’s year-on-year GDP growth was 3.0% in 2022.
According to the IMF, the rapid spread of COVID-19 dampened the
economic growth in China, but the reopening in late January 2023
has paved the way for a faster-than-expected recovery.

In late January 2023, the IMF projected that the global economy
growth would fall to 2.9% in 2023 from 3.4% in 2022, but this is an
improvement over the growth prediction of 2.7% made in October
2022 which is due to the surprisingly resilient demand in the United
States and Europe, an easing energy costs and the re-opening of
China’s economy after the re-adjustment of its strict zero-COVID
policy. IMF went on to predict that for 2024 the global growth would
only increase slightly to 3.1% because the demand might be slowed
by the full impact of steeper increases in central bank interest rates.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022
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Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the volatile
economic environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence in
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER MO

Business Review

Business Review

Having found the effective disseminations of our brand concepts
through cross-sector collaborations in the past, the Group continued
to cooperate with a number of well-known brands in different industry
sectors through developing a series of creative marketing strategies
and programs, with a view to accelerating the publicity and to
enhance promotion of our brand image and branded products to
potential customers.

During the year under review, we made a cross-sector cooperation
with an online game company “Mengjianghu 25T 4" . A “Bawang
haircare salon” was established and implanted into the scene of
the interactive game. Additionally, a hyperlink was inserted into the
Bawang haircare salon which directed the game players onto the
official online flagship shop of Bawang. During the period of 30 days
when the Bawang haircare salon was active, it attracted over 3.0
million users visiting our online store, which in-turn led to an increase in
our online sales revenue.

£ JEI)

KBOE

BABREANBRAEE RMBEBRTRE
BAMmeEdEal SEEEHETS
TRTEMEmBETEE LTRABE
R—RVAEEMNEHEEBMIEBE - £
HEMRERERNREEREEENE
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ST R s WE—HEIS S

EBIXNEEE I NNERE Iiﬁ)&
BEEZHFEIEES SIBEEEIIRIEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN W kT (8)
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During the year under review, we made another cross-sector
cooperation with an online game company whereby we successfully
tailor-made a limited edition of co-branded haircare gift-pack known
as “Bawang and 3x7 Mutual Entertainment (BBEx=tHIR)" to
celebrate the Programmer’s Day on 24th of October. We also
initiated a discussion topic titled “Internet Bloggers, Erupt!” on various
social media, which attracted a readership of over 5.7 million. These
helped with our publicity promotion efforts and the promotion of our
branded products.

During the year under review, we made another cross-sector
cooperation with Jin Dafu Jewelry Company, whereby Bawang and
Jin Dafu each carried out interactive lucky draws on each other’s
official accounts at Weibo, WeChat, Little Red Book, which attracted
very substantial exposures on the web. At the same time, both
Bawang and Jin Dafu recruited 10 to 20 brand bloggers for re-
direction of the lucky draw activity to each other. The browsing
volume reached an aggregate of 3.2 million, which had the effect of
extensively publicizing and promoting our branded products.

During the year under review, we made a cross-sector cooperation
with Fairy Sword and Chivalrous Legend. We produced a cobranded
haircare shampoo gift-pack with the images of Fairy Sword and
Chivalrous Legend packaging design coupled with Bawang classic
regrow shampoo. Whilst carrying out the publicity, we sold the gift-
packs at our flagship shop, which increased the sales revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As part of our longstanding marketing campaign to cultivate and
establish the haircare market segment of the young generation, we
have maintained our presence at various college campuses in China.
During the course of their orientation programs and college festivals,
we participate and sponsor the students’ activities by freebies and
trial Bawang shampoo products and at the same time conduct on-
campus publicity of our branded products and herbal haircare
education, which have the effect of making more and more young
people understand Bawang'’s haircare concept and the functionalities
of Bawang branded haircare products. During the year under review,
to enhance the involvement and strengthen the students’
understanding of Bawang’s brand concept, the Group visited
different campuses in six cities for face-to-face interactive
communication and carried out brand publicity promotions. Apart
from this, the Group participated in 2022 College Students
Advertising Festival (KE4 FSETED) through inviting entries of
creative work to publicize and promote Bawang branded products
through poster designs and multimedia videos. Selected winning
entries have subsequently been adopted by the Group in our displays
and/or showcased in our online platforms, points-of-sale TVs, metro
stations, public transport, outdoor post-board and industry
exhibitions. The purpose is to speak the language of young
generation for promoting our products.
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It has been our Group’s marketing strategy to create a youthful image
of our products and expand our customer base in the youth market
segment. We rolled out and promoted our Bawang products through
a consolidation of ACGN with Bawang wash and care for this
particular segment. During the year under review, we have
successfully rolled out our branded product, Bawang Blossom Flower
Shower Gel, to the market, which helped the Group develop into the
new flower shower gel market segment. We have also successfully
rolled out the Bawang branded toothpaste series, and this expansion
in our product range has helped the Group develop into the new
herbal-based oral hygiene market segment. Leveraging on an unique
IP image of Bawang, we rolled out new product series under Bawang
Herbal Fairy Animations Series.

To satisfy the young customers’ need for controlling ladies’ oily-hair
and dandruff issues, we successfully rolled out anti-dandruff and oil-
controlling shampoo products for sale on the T-Mall online sales
platform during the year under review. We also upgraded our anti-hair
fall products for this segment.

During the year under review, we have successfully applied a special
permit for our Bawang branded anti-hair-fall product series, which
enhanced the consumer’s confidence in purchasing our products
and thereby increased the sales revenue from this product series.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB NI ()

During the year under review, we educated consumers and promoted
our branded products on popular content platforms such as Douyin,
Kuaishou, Weibo, Little Red Book, Bilibili using communication
means that are well-liked by customers such as graphics + text and
short video clips. We attract consumers to buy our products through
instore counter-shows in various hypermarkets, so as to strengthen
our distributors’ confidence and accelerate the development of a new
distribution network.

During the year under review, for the domestic market, we
successfully re-activated various major distribution channels in
northern, eastern and western China. We successfully launched our
classic herbal products series into the Russian and Mongolian
markets. Additionally, we successfully launched our hot selling anti-
hair fall and hair care products into the US market. Whilst expanding
our overseas sales channel, we have enhanced at the same time the
influence of our products in overseas markets.

During the year under review, we continued to participate in
community welfare events so as to enhance our public image as a
responsible corporation. The Group made donations of Bawang
branded household and personal care (“HPC”) products and
antiseptic sanitary products to the impoverished families in the hilly
areas of north Guangdong. During the Women’s Day on the 8th of
March and in conjunction with the Guangzhou Hailong Sub-district
Social Service Station, we made courtesy visits and donated
complimentary caring product packs. In collaboration with the
Guangzhou Community Social Service Station, we carried out the
2022 Bawang Warm-Hearted activity and donated Bawang and
Royal Wind branded products to the frontline anti-pandemic workers
to show our appreciation to these workers for fighting the pandemic
together. We believe that these types of social activities help to
publicise our corporate mission and enhance our corporate image.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 818 distributors and eight KA retailers,
covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang-branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, USA, Russia and Mongolia.

During the year under review, the Group enhanced its product
formula and upgraded packaging to promote new Royal Wind
branded shampoo products primarily for the online sales channel. As
at 31 December 2022, the Royal Wind brand distribution network
comprised approximately 818 distributors and eight KA retailers,
covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China.
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The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to maintain market coverage
in the traditional channel. As at 31 December 2022, the Litao
products distribution network comprised approximately 755
distributors, covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skin-care product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursuing a healthy and natural
lifestyle. We sold the products through our online sales channel and
group purchase.

The Group has established 9 online retailing platforms for our
Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded products, of which two
were established during the year under review.

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows:

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was
issued by Guangdong Provincial Medical Products
Administration, which is valid until May 2027;

—  Our Chinese herbal hair care series shampoo, Chinese anti-
dandruff series shampoo and Chinese herbal skin care series
body wash series products have been recognized as “The 2022
Elite High-Tech Products in Guangdong Province” by the
Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise Association (&5
BEFEMEERE) in January 2023 and valid for a period of
three years until January 2026;
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— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2025
as to meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2008;

— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2025
as to meet the requirements of 1ISO22716 by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2007;

— we have been accredited as a “Committee Unit” by Guangdong ~ —

Provincial Food & Drug Technology Association for Evaluation &
Certification, which is valid until December 2023;

— In January 2022, our short marketing case video “Bawang —

Shampoo — Contribution to the Preservation of Puppetry, a

Chinese Intangible Cultural Heritage (38 T t&2/K —B) A EI3E
B E¥EL)” won the Grand Prize and Nomination Award of
the overall Grand Prize in the 11th Entertainment Marketing
Forum cum 5S Gold Award (5 +—fE IR 444 {18 E5S £ #9);

— In August 2022, we were accredited as Grade A credit rating
taxpayer for 2021 by Guangzhou Municipal Tax Service of the
State Taxation Administration; and

—  In December 2022, Bawang shampoo won two honors of “College
Students’ Favorite Dynamic Brand” and “College Students’
Favorite Young Product” in the 29th China International
Advertising Festival Media Enterprise Exhibition Fair (8529/F 7
REEHECRRRSS).
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Key Risks and Uncertainties FTERBETHBREZ

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement, Management B X EHEEZ BERENHEONEE
Discussion and Analysis and Outlook sections, the Company is £ i it & & LA ﬁl\ AR A EREBCR 8§
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are ) (F B A B E622F ) 78 F 4 & P &
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. ®EEZ@E M &K THEBBERZWNOT

622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it has been common for the Mainland
manufacturing enterprises to face continuously rising labour
costs and difficulties in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s
strategy in response is to reduce the production costs by
improving the degree of machine automation and efficiency.
Since the start of 2020, and up to the year ended 31 December
2022, almost all business enterprises in the China have been
suffering from the unprecedented coronavirus pandemic,
corresponding prevention and control measures by the
government have been implemented to contain the spread of
coronavirus. During this period, the Group strictly followed all
the regulatory measures laid down by the government and the
Group has made every effort to ameliorate any adverse impacts
on its operations and economic impacts on itself and its
customers. As always, the Group will co-operate with the
government on all mandatory control measures in respect of
public hygiene and health, if any.

Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are recognised for uncollectible
debts. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
reversal of impairment losses of approximately RMB3.0 million
in respect of trade receivables by adopting the expected credit
loss model.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, as
a result of which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.

Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures that
all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our human
resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also provide
training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff members. We
also care for the occupational health and safety of our workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised into three channels,
namely conventional distributors, key account hypermarkets and
supermarkets, and online sales (including online official flagship stores
and distributors). The credit terms granted to major customers are 30
to 90 days, which are in line with those of the credit terms granted to
other customers.

The Group maintains good relationships with its customers. We have
put in place handling procedures to receive and analyse the
customers’ complaints and make recommendations on remedial
actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022
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Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB246.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 10.0%
from approximately RMB273.6 million for 2021. The revenue through
the online sales channel was approximately RMB115.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 17.9% from approximately
RMB141.0 million in 2021 and the revenue through the conventional
sales channel slightly decreased by approximately 1.5% as compared
with 2021.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB237.7 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
96.5% of the Group’s total revenue by product category in 2022, and
represented a decrease of approximately 8.7% as compared with
2021.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB4.0 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 1.6% of the Group’s total revenue by
product category in 2022, and represented a decrease of approximately
32.3% as compared with 2021.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB4.6
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 1.9% of the
Group’s total revenue by product category in 2022, and represented
a decrease of approximately 25.8% as compared with 2021.

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks, and via conventional and online sales channels. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, a summary of our sales revenue in
percentage through different networks and/or channels is as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In 2022, the sales to Hong Kong and other overseas markets
accounted for approximately 1.2% of our total revenue.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2022 amounted to approximately RMB153.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 11.9% compared with
approximately RMB174.6 million in 2021. The overall decrease in
cost of sales was mainly due to a decrease in the consumption of
raw materials, packaging materials and direct labour costs resulting
from the decrease in sales volume, and also the decrease in the
rental for factory and warehouse premises since September 2022,
which led to a decrease of manufacturing costs. As a percentage of
revenue, cost of sales decreased from approximately 63.8% in 2021
to approximately 62.4% in 2022.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased to
approximately RMB92.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.6% as compared with approximately RMB99.0
million for 2021. The gross profit margin increased from approximately
36.2% for 2021 to approximately 37.6% for 2022. Such increase was
mainly attributable to a decrease in the average unit cost of
production as aforementioned.

Other Income

During the year under review, other income decreased to RMB3.6
million, representing a decrease of 55.7% as compared with 2021.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to reversal of impairment
losses in respect of property, plant and equipment approximately
RMB3.3 million in 2021 (2022: approximately RMB0.3 million).

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB83.5
million for 2022, representing a mild decrease of approximately 0.9%
as compared with approximately RMB84.3 million in 2021. Such
decrease was mainly due to a decrease in advertising and branding
expenses and outsourced labour costs, but such decrease was
partially offset by an increase in termination benefits and other
expenses. As a percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution
costs increased from approximately 30.8% in 2021 to 33.9% in 2022.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB32.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 10.3%
as compared with approximately RMB29.3 million in 2021. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in write-off of trade
receivable and termination benefits, but such increase was partially
offset by the decrease in research and development expenses and
others expenses. As a percentage of revenue, our administration
expenses were approximately 13.1% and 10.7% in 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Impairment Losses Reversed in respect of Trade
Receivables

For the year under review, the Group has reversed impairment losses
of approximately RMB3.0 million in respect of trade receivables,
following the management’s assessment on credit risk of our financial
assets by adopting the expected credit loss (the “ECL”) according to
IFRS 9.

Loss from Operations

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB17.3
million for 2022, as compared with an operating loss of approximately
RMB7.5 million for 2021, which was mainly because of the decrease
of the revenue and the increase in administrative expenses.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no interest on bank
borrowings was incurred (2021: Nil). Additionally, interest on lease
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB2.1 million (2021: RMB1.6
million).

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no income
tax expense (2021: Nil).

Loss for the Year

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB19.4 million for
2022, as compared with a loss of approximately RMB9.1 million for
2021.
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The net loss for the full financial year 2022 has shown a minor
improvement with the estimated loss of RMB25.3 million as
announced in the Profit Warning Announcement for 10 month ended
31 October 2022, which was primarily due to a decrease in the prices
of key raw materials and labour costs, and also interest received on
time deposits.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB19.4 million for 2022, as compared with a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB9.1
million for 2021.

Outlook

In early February 2023, the CEIC’s weekly nowcast announced that
China’s retail sales grew by 0.4% year-on-year in January 2023 The
rebound in China’s consumption came after three consecutive
monthly declines between October and December 2022.

In the National People’s Congress of China in March 2023, a modest
GDP growth target of around 5.0% in 2023 was made, which is lower
than that of the IMF’s forecast of 5.2% in 2023, but a bit higher than
the Reuter’s poll forecast of 4.9% in 2023. While the China’s then
Premier Li Kegiang stressed the need for economic stability,
expansion of consumption and creation of urban job opportunities,
he warned at the same time that global inflation remains high, global
economic and trade growth is losing steam, and external attempts to
suppress and contain the growth of China are escalating.

According to a research report released by a bank in Hong Kong,
China’s exports fell by 6.8% year-on-year in January and February
20283. Though the figures are less than expected, the exports have
remained in contraction since October 2022. Imports saw a larger
decline of 10.2% year-on-year, which were primarily driven by the
ongoing weakness in exports as well as lower prices of key common
commodities globally and soft global demand that affects the value of
processing imports. Domestic demand remained relatively resilient,
but the headwinds from softer global demand may continue in the
coming months, which means a stronger domestic demand revival is
needed to reach the growth target of “around 5.0%” in 2023.
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Owing to the uncertainties and challenges against the overall
economic recovery as mentioned in the above paragraphs, the
Directors tend to be very cautious about the Chinese economic
growth in 2023 and hence they will be conservative in formulating the
strategies and operational plans for the Company.

The corporate theme for 2023 is “Continue our Growth at a Steady
Pace”.

For Bawang-branded products, the Group intends to adopt the
following strategies for publicity and promotion of its branded
products and enhancement of revenue: (1) we will continue to provide
consumers with quality China-chic products, leveraging on the
Chinese consumers’ desire for and confidence in domestically
manufactured products in promoting our branded products series; (2)
we will roll out new Bawang branded shampoo products series, such
as ginger, caviar, fleece flower root, and white truffle to the exclusive
zone channel for expanding this distributor network so as to enhance
the sale revenues; (3) we will roll out new products series to the online
sales channel, such as body wash oil, scalp scaling scrub, scalp care
essence and moisture masks so as to increase sales revenue, (4) we
will roll out dedicated promotional themes and different unique IP
images for various festivals together with new packaging of Bawang
anti-hair fall shampoo series to attract the attention of young
consumers and to arouse their purchase interests; (5) we will continue
to promote Bawang branded products through implanted
commercials in live streaming programs, cross-sector cooperations,
and participating in more charitable communities services with
implanted commercials; and (6) leveraging on the celebrity-
endorsement marketing effect and continuous sharing of the views
and comments by KOLs through new social media, personalised
social media, Xiaohongshu promotion and sharing of product
evaluations, we hope to achieve wide-spread publicity for the
Bawang brand quickly and arouse our target customers’ purchasing
interests and to accelerate the sales growth of our branded products.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group will sell these
branded products, which are mainly hair-care product series, through
the online sales channel so as to attract more young consumers and
to enhance sales revenue of this brand.

For Litao branded product series, the Group will continue with its
household care brand positioning, and will continue to sell laundry
detergent and other HPC products through our conventional
channels.
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For Herborn branded product series, the Group will sell these
branded products, mainly hair-care product series, hair-conditioner,
shower gel, body lotion, make-up remover and face masks, through
the online sales channel to enhance sales revenue of this brand.

For conventional channels, the Group will continue to deepen
cooperation and interaction with distributors by: (1) leveraging on the
increasing customer flow at the big shopping malls following the re-
opening of the economic activities in late January 2023, we will make
use of various major festive days such as the International Women’s
Day, the Labour Day, the Mid-Autumn Festival and the National Day
Holiday for carrying out promotional activities at the malls to increase
sales; (2) increasing the frequency of weekend promotion and
publicity counter-shows inside those major points-of-sales and
making use of the creative performance to arouse shoppers’ attention
and to achieve positive impacts on our brand influence; (3) building a
creative and attractive image of window displays at those major
points-of-sales for enhancing the sales revenue; (4) strengthening the
quality sales support services offered to key accounts so as to
stabilise the sales revenue generating from this channel; (5) continuing
to promote economical family-size Bawang Blossom Flower shower
gel; and (6) actively exploring the green field markets that have good
sales potential and new distribution network, and points-of-sale to
increase sales.

As for the online sales channel, the Group hopes to achieve stable
growth through implementation of the following plans: (1) the Group
will optimise the operational efficiency, and stabilise market share for
hot sales items such as anti-hair fall haircare product series. The
Group will create further hot sales items such as ginger shampoo,
scalp essence and haircare essence oil products to increase sales
revenue; (2) the Group will continue to optimize our merchandises
available for sales at T-Mall flagship stores, to maintain the sales of
hot-items whilst stabilizing the existing customer base, and to roll out
new products for developing new customer base; (3) the Group wiill
develop further shops at Pingduoduo and to increase sales through
channel-specific tailor-made products; (4) the Group will increase its
spending in the live video-streaming so as to develop new channels
for increasing sales in Duoyin and Kuaishou through channel
broadcasters to carry out instant online sales to increase sale
revenue; (5) the Group will continue to develop online channel
distributors and partners for making use of the mutual advantages to
increase sales; and (6) for the self-operating channels at T-Mall and
JD.com, we will make use of the scale and influence of our brand for
further cooperation with the online platforms and streamlining the
operations so as to increase sales revenue.
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For production management, quality and cost control are our motto.
We always put our top priority on product quality through reasonable
utilizations of the existing production resources. We will continue to
strengthen our research and development capability, to optimize our
production process, to implement centralized production for
conservation of water, electricity and gas energy so as to reduce
production costs, and to strictly enforce intensive controls over the
production flows and process which ensure the quality of our
products while at the same time minimizing the spoilage and wastage
S0 as to achieve competitive cost advantage in the market.

We will adopt a flexible supply chain management approach to plan
and design the production process so as to maximise the production
effectiveness, and to optimise the utilisations of production facilities
and factory space so as to minimize the production costs.

We will implement a complete performance-based assessment
system, which serves to ignite the dynamism and enthusiasm from
individual staff members, for the purpose of enhancing efficiency,
reducing the production costs and increasing the rewards to workers.

For our original equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) business, we will
make use of our competitive advantages in professional design,
research and development capabilities, mature production
management techniques and advanced production infrastructures for
expanding our OEM business with a view to strengthening our co-
operations with quality customers so as to increase our market share
and influence in this business sector.

We believe that through the above-mentioned resources
management and workflow integration to maximise production
effectiveness, we can create more returns for our shareholders.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility of engaging with potential distributors for
launching our branded products to other countries. The Group is
open to explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group would consider the feasibility of any potential
investment opportunities to enhance the returns to our shareholders.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. As at 31 December
2022, the time deposits, bank balances and cash of the Group were
approximately RMB124.4 million (2021: approximately RMB113.3
million). Of which, the total time deposits with various maturity dates
of the Group were approximately RMB50.0 million (2021:
approximately RMB54.0 million). A summary of liquidity and financial
resources is set out below:

%Ebﬁﬁ MBERRELRRE

AEERARTHVBEEBR L ER
REBENYBHRR -BLE=—F ==

+-A=+—HB AEENEHER

BITEHREBSANOARKI24458 T
—E - —F:HARK1I33EE L)

EEAAEETRAEBENAEHEFER

BUARB00BETL(ZE-_—F: 4
ARBS40BETL) RBESMYBKE
BREESHOT -

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
R-s=—=— R-_T - —4F
+=ZA=+—-—H +ZHA=+—H
RMB in million RMB in million
ARBEER ARBBEE T
Time deposits, bank balances and cash TFTHEZ HRITEH LIRS 124.4 113.3
Total loans EEEE 0 0
Total assets BEE 244.2 295.6
The gearing ratio' EEAEX 0% 0%
Note: Bat -
1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets 1. BEBBEXRRERBOEGRINEEREGETE
Material Acquisition and Disposal BERKBNEHE

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency
of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or United
States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly
denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong
Kong Doallars if dividends are declared. The Directors are of the view
that the Group conducts its business transactions principally in
Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the Group’s operational level
is not significant. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had not issued
any material financial instruments or entered into any material
contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes. However, the
Directors will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure of
the Group and are prepared to take prudent measures such as
hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material capital
commitment.

Charge of Assets

The Group had no charge of assets as at 31 December 2022.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Inventories

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB27.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately 33.6%
compared with approximately RMB40.8 million for 2021. Such
decrease was primarily due to the sales of the stock of finished goods
brought forward from preceding year which was prepared for the
promotional activities of online sales channel then, and the decrease in
the stock levels of both finished goods and raw materials during the
year.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB14.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 28.5% compared with approximately RMB20.0 million
for 2021. Such decrease was primarily due to the decrease in the
overall sales through online and conventional channels leading to a
decrease in trade receivables.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.
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Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2022, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB79.6 million (2021: RMB83.5 million). The
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in trade payables and
accrued payroll, but such decrease was partially offset by the
increase in other payables and accruals. As at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021, trade and other payables did not include
any balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2022, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest legislative/regulatory compliance,
accounting standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed approximately 442
employees (831 December 2021: approximately 499), consisting of
full-time employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and
benefits, amounted to approximately RMB55.0 million for 2022 (31
December 2021: approximately RMB54.7 million).
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of

our employees and contract personnel as at 31 December 2022 and
2021:

TREINR-_F-_—_F+_-_A=+—H
A—Z-_—H+-A=+t—BHMOR
BERAHNREEMNAAD

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—s=-= —F - —

+=-—A=+-—AH +ZHA=+—H

Full-time employees *HES 207 222
Contract personnel AHEE

- Full time -2 235 277

— Part time — 0 = —

235 277

Total employees BEBA"Y 442 499

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme,
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised six members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and
Senior Management on pages 62 to 66 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEOQ.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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To satisfy the independence requirement of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Board must determine that the independent
non-executive Directors do not have any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.
To ensure that independent views and input are available to the
Board, the Board also consults with its external advisors as and when
required for it to obtain independent views on matters ranging from (but
not limited to) legal and regulatory compliance, financial report and
corporate governance.

In addition, to ensure that there is a strong independent element in
the Board, when nominating independent non-executive Directors to
the Board, the Board takes into account factors including but not
limited to the nominee’s character, integrity, professional profile, and
relevant working experience in the context of the profiles and working
experience of other Directors. To ensure that independent non-
executive Directors are able to perform their duties impartially, none
of them has any role in the daily management of the Group, and the
Board will also take into account the Nomination Policy to ensure that
the independent non-executive Director candidates proposed would
be able to provide independent views to the Board. The Board also
regularly reviews the re-appointment of any independent non-
executive Director who has served more than nine years, and will
ensure that any such reappointment would be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meetings of the Company. Independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held 10 meetings in 2022. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and
Dr. WANG Qi attended all meetings. Dr. NGAI Wai Fung attended all
four meetings which had been held before his retirement on 27 May
2022. Dr. LIU Jing attended all six meetings which were held after her
appointment on 27 May 2022.
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The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) as
required by the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules,
respectively, and has taken into account the diversity of the Board
when selecting the candidates from a number of perspectives as
stated in the Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
webpage.

Nomination Policy

Either the secretary or the chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and may invite
nominations of candidates from the Board members, if any, for the
Nomination Committee to consider prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidate(s) who are not
nominated by any member of the Board. For filling a casual vacancy,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation(s) for the
consideration and approval of the Board. For proposing candidate(s)
to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for approval.

In order to provide information on the candidate(s) nominated by the
Board for election at a shareholders’ general meeting, and to invite
nominations from the shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The relevant circular will at a minimum set out such information
about each proposed candidate, as required under the applicable
laws, rules and regulations, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Listing Rules. A shareholder may serve a notice to the
Company Secretary within the lodgment period of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a director without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination. The particulars of the proposed candidates will be sent
to all shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.

In assessing the suitability of a potential candidate, the Nomination
Committee would consider factors, including but not limited to,
candidate’s personal integrity and character, accomplishment and
experience that are relevant to the Group’s business, and diversity of
the Board in accordance with the Diversity Policy.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CEEREE (B)

DHIRBCERERTAD R EHARNE
Ko ARFDHEMREBBR ([RBEE])
REZFEZTEBR(ZSRAEBE]) AL
EREERRNPE EBM A RER
BEEREARNZE I AEREZ TIL
BRTPAANEFEKREZ LI -

’EBWE

REZEGNEXTIEROHNEZESS
WA BREFENERAREA W
B GEEZARHARRLEGETRE RA
ZEghARAMLIFNETSKRER
FAHREAN - BIEMBREEZR EREE
SRELEZ HEFSRINZE -1
REBEAEBRRAG LHERERESZ
T REZEARNEFTSFLRES
UHEZSEZ TARAAKRRRELZ
& AR AL A -

ATARREREAPDOENR - XL H#
BRREEBRRAG LREES  SHF
BRAARRHEESRE EFTERR
EHRANBE  MRRELBL AR
388 K S 1 SR R DA - RRUAIR DI - &
AIEREMEMRUNER RillE—
BEHRZHEREANER - WRREBER
RRERANBRBEATRES BEE
ZeEFAAREZEORE MUAER
RABRRE MARMEXFBM 1R
Z R IE N B FE IS R DA TR R Y 07 X
RAEBRRESH -

REZEEREFRBEEREARZ2E
—HEREBERESRREEANHE
A an 3~ 1 5 B AR B 5 5 R A A L MDA
B EFEZTEHRR-—HNHZ TN
=

BIEW(EE)ERERAT —B-=FEH

33



34

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEEREE (B)

Diversity Policy

In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects of each
director candidate will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointment will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria as set out in this policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and has followed the Nomination Policy and the
Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new Director(s).

The Board has reviewed the appropriateness of an express diversity
quota or measurable objective in achieving board diversity. After the
appointment of Dr. Liu Jing at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 May 2022, the Board has members of both
genders, and the Board considers that the Diversity Policy has been
followed in furthering the diversity of the Board and after taking into
account the current Board size and also the general industry
landscape, it is appropriate to maintain the current gender diversity
ratio at the Board level without setting further specific numerical
targets and timelines, or design specific measures to develop a
further pipeline of potential successors to the Board on matters
relating to gender diversity. The Board will continue with its practice
of considering candidates for directorship of the Board based on the
diversity perspectives as set out in the Diversity Policy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a relatively balanced
workforce overall in terms of gender distribution, with a female to
male employee ratio of 60:40, with both men and women being well
represented in the various different functions throughout the Group.
The Company supports diversity across a variety of perspectives, the
key areas of which are similar to those for the board diversity. The
Group will keep in mind its diversity policy to reach a balanced gender
ratio in its workforce as one of its corporate objectives in the long run.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which, the decision to declare a dividend or a distribution
will be at the discretion of the Board. The Company intends to
declare dividends to shareholders semi-annually in an aggregate
amount per year not exceeding 30% of the anticipated consolidated
net annual profits and may declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to interim or final dividends. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account (including but not limited to) the
Group’s operations and earnings, development needs, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual and financial restrictions and any other conditions
or factors which the Board considers relevant and having regard to
the directors’ fiduciary duties. While sharing the profit with
shareholders, the Company shall also maintain sufficient reserves to
ensure the implementation of the Group’s strategy for development.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
those laws, regulations and memorandum and articles of association
to which the subsidiaries of the Group are subject.

The Divided Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

The Company is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.
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Update on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director, ceased
to be an independent non-executive director of the Company from 27
May 2022. Dr. NGAI also ceased to be the chairman of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee, and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, an independent non-executive Director,
ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (Stock code: 1710) from 27 May 2022.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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As of 31 December 2022, all Directors (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (before
his retirement on 27 May 2022), Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, Dr. WANG
Qi and Dr. LIU Jing (after her appointment on 27 May 2022)) received
regular updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters, and participated in
the directors’ training offered by professional bodies and/or arranged
by the Company. Materials on new or changes to salient laws and
regulations applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors.
Directors are requested to provide their records of training they
received to the Company Secretary for record and annual review by
the Nomination Committee. During the year under review, the
Directors received an aggregate of approximately 413.7 hours of
training in various fields as follows:
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2022 Directors’ Training by Topic
TECCHFEBERIEE

Hong Kong Financial Economy/ Business

Legislative/  Director’s Reporting/ Capital Management/
Average per person’ Regulatory Duties/ESG Taxation/Risk Market Investor
approximately 69 hours Compliance Practices Management Updates Relationship Others'

BEBEG/ EEBE/ B i &/ KR/

EEREN RE ug B/ SEmE KBEE/
BAFE®: H69/M B RERER [ BB B BH 2 REBEBEE Hi'
Executive Director HITESE
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan PR BB 5C & v v v v 4 v
Mr. CHEN Zheng He F8R IF BB o & v v v v v v
Mr. WONG Sin Yung EEREE v v v v v v
Independent

Non-executive
Directors BIYFHITES
Dr. NGAI Wai Fung® 3 IEE L v v v v v v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 3R 48 % 4 4 v v v v
Dr. WANG Qi FEiE+ v v v v v v
Dr. LIU Jing* 2EE L v v v v v v
1. Include topics such as technology transfer and industry association internal training, 1. BREENEMERE 1TEHE N5 -
etc.
2. The calculation is based on an aggregate of six directors who served the whole years. 2, HFUEH NN ESREEFTE -
3. Retired on 27 May 2022. 3. N_ZT-_—_FRA-_++tBENK-
4. Appointed on 27 May 2022. 4, R-_E-_—FRB-_t++HEZFE-
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (retired on 27 May 2022),
and Dr. WANG Qi (appointed on 27 May 2022). Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures that none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration. If necessary, the
Remuneration Committee will have access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting on 27 May 2022.
Each of Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG
Qi attended the said meeting.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors; assessed the performance of
directors; and reviewed the terms of directors’ service contract for Dr.
LIU Jing with effect from on 27 May 2022.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (retired on 27 May 2022) and
Dr. WANG Qi (appointed on 27 May 2022). Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings on or before 27 May
2022. During the meetings, the committee members reviewed the
senior management structure of the Group and the re-election of
Directors; reviewed and recommended to the Board about the
appointment of director, Dr. LIU Jing, with effect from 27 May 2022;
and assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. All serving committee members attended the two meetings
held on or before 27 May 2022.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2022, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
two of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee had been chaired by Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung until he retired on 27 May 2022. Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing has been appointed as chairman since 27 May 2022. The other
members are Dr. WANG Qi and Dr. LIU Jing (appointed on 27 May
2022).

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee was prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations. SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited will confirm its independence before accepting the
engagement of non-audit services.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;
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— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

In 2022, all issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of the senior
management of the Company and the Board of sufficient significance
for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held four meetings in
2022. Each of Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi had
attended all four meetings. Dr. NGAI Wai Fung had attended all two
meetings which had been held before he retired on 27 May 2022,
and Dr. LIU Jing attended all two meetings which were held after her
appointment on 27 May 2022.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met three times to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022, is set out on pages 72 to 74 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.
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Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls, and the Board considers that these
systems and controls are well established to suit the Group’s needs
and are effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information or potentially price sensitive information with reference to
its own and industry circumstances and also makes reference to the
“Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in considering its obligations to make a
disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly prohibits unauthorised use
or dissemination of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including the provision of an email
address for external enquiries. The Company Secretary also regularly
sends out reminders to the Directors, senior management and
employees reminding them of their obligations with respect to inside
information under the relevant statutory provisions and the Listing
Rules.
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All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (iii) latest and key information of the
Group is available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conference and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts may be set up from time to time to provide updated
information about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve
the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The
Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with
the Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.

The Company convened shareholders’ general meeting in 2022, this
being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2021,
which was held on 27 May 2022, reviewed and approved a number
of resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2021,
Report of Directors, appointment of Dr. Liu Jing as an independent
non-executive Director, and appointment and remuneration of
auditors of the Company. All the serving Directors then, namely Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI
Wai Fung and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi had
attended the AGM.

The Company has conducted a review of the implementation and
effectiveness of its policies on investor relations and communication
with shareholders. Having considered the multiple channels of
communication and shareholder engagement in place, and the
feedback that it has received, it is satisfied that the policies that are in
place for investor relations and communication with shareholders
have been properly implemented and is effective during the year
under review.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite B, 12/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3118 6161

Email: IR@1338.hk
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Constitutional Documents

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year under review. A resolution will be
proposed in the upcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to amend the articles of association of the Company to, among other
things, (i) bring the existing Articles of Association in alignment with
the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out in Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules, and (i) make other housekeeping amendments.
Further details will be set out in the shareholders’ circular for the
upcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders in due course.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remunerations paid/(payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2022 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2022, respectively)
were approximately RMB1,012,000 and RMB170,000, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ASPECTS

The Group is always committed to maintaining the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. A report on the environmental, social
and governance aspects is being prepared with reference to
Appendix 27 (Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide) to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and will
be published respectively on the websites of the Company
(www.bawang.com.cn) and the Stock Exchange in due course.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 165 to 166 of this
annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the financial year 2022, as well as indication of likely
future developments in the business of the Group are set out in the
sections “Business Review” on pages 10 to 16, “Key Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 16 to 17, “Environmental Protection” on
page 18, “Business Compliance” on page 18, “Relationship with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers” on page 18, and “Outlook” on
pages 22 to 25 of this report respectively. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue among the different operating segments using is set out in
the sections “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 124 to
128 and “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 167 in this report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 75 of this annual report.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2022 are set out on pages 78 and
157 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 21.73% and 10.87%, respectively of the total sales
of the Group. The Group purchased approximately 41.14% and
18.25%, respectively of its goods and services purchased from its
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 167 of this annual
report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 78 of this annual report).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or

the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries
Please refer to note 35 of the audited consolidated financial

statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2022.

Purchase, Sa!e or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme described below, the Group has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.
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Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of assets of our Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur about the execution of
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year. For the year under review and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, CPA, FCCA, FCG, HKFCG (P.E.), MCIArb
(Retired on 27 May 2022)

CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra

Dr. WANG Qi

Dr. LIU Jing
(Appointed on 27 May 2022)

Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2022)
biographies have been set out on pages 62 to 66 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014. All these service
agreements are automatically renewable upon expiration, unless
terminated by not less than six months’ written notice served by
either party to the service agreement on the other or in accordance
with the provisions set out in the relevant service agreement.

For the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years from 13 November 2020. Dr. WANG Qi has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 17 April 2021. Dr. LIU Jing has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 27 May
2022.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. The Directors may be benefited from
fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind
or bonuses in accordance with their respective service contracts.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2022, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and

EFEREBITRAARTLFRMG
HEEMRREEDEANER R *

debentures of the Company =
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held R A E
Name of director/ BELT 2817
chief executive Long/short position in HEBRX Az
EE/BERTTHRAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HBEEER EHEBE DL
= EZBERPZH/IRE EatE IR 8B (W)
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR BROIR (B 3E) e FFr 4% 1% B 4 25
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
Bk 1 85 (T 5E2) FE P 128 A B
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
HER A EnEB A
Notes: FTsE -

CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (“Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57%
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic
Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of
CHEN Qiyuan’s five children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng
Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour,
representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable
to CHEN Qiyuan.

CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune
Station.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations
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Approximate
Number of percentage of

ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short BEH corporation
EZ/RETHRAE corporation Nature of interest position ZER REBEZEYP
zH HELE RS EEME HIRR ROEE <EZEIL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 20,000 50.43%
BR RO (B 3E1) EmBAA Sy
Interest of children under Long 12,777 32.22%
the age of 18
AMIBHEF R 2w Sy
Other Long 6,880 17.35%
Hit e
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
PR IE#5 (Fid5E2) P2 1A B & Sy
Notes: s
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share 1. P& BR A& Fortune Station 2 %2 17 1% 2K #9 #950.43% &

capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s five children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

mHAAN - ARBURISARA TH AN TLME
5 5 A #965.00% Heroic Hour 2, 8 17 f% 28 IR 4848 &
57 B PR EXR © Heroic Hour# 7 Fortune Station & 2%
FTRR A 8 #749.57% ©

2. BREREBEAITARBREANUBH®KESR
Heroic Hour 2 &= &B 2 % 17 i% 78 1 4% 4% /& 7 Heroic
Hour 7 Fortune Station 89 # 2 7 # /5 # & ©
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2022, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

KRB ETERRNEER

NP
/ﬁE

BAARIEMNESRESITHRABRN
M R —_FF+ZA=1+—H BRE
(BRARBIEETHI®ESITEABIN) R
HBREERODTFEEREEFNBPEK

PIE336HEREAECLNFFENE LM
AEERSORB T

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share

of the Company capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
RAFE
BEWNRAR BITREADBZ
ZBER A=
BRRER EEME i - Q=] (K &)
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
EnlEE A
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
Pzl =Bz (1)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Interest of children under the age of 18 612,429,778 (L) 19.36%
8 R E (MfiE2) RIM18HRH) F X 2w
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
R £ £ (Bt 5E3) FiEXa AGEREBEER
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H Aty
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN LiZi (F} 5£3) FEREEE A GERIBRET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H Aty
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneﬁciary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fff 3£ 3) FEiExa AGEREET
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H Aty
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Approximate
Number of percentage of

ordinary shares issued share
of the Company capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
NN
BENLR BITRAHZ
ZER EmEIH
RERERE ERME gk =] (R &)
CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR IE 72 (451 3) BEEXm A GEMIBERT)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H it
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR A= (M9 5E3) BEEXm A GEMIBEET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
Hits
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (Fff £3) ErEX @A GERIEER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
(L)—Long Position
L—EFE
Notes: B 7
1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. 7& #& Heroic Hour & Fortune Station 2 % 77 J% 748 9 £

capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua's five children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo
Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour,
were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust,
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

49.57% B 25 B A » Heroic Hour # 1% 7 7 Fortune
StatonF AW AR KM P EHEL -

2. HEEEI8ARUTHAMT L BICHENLZ

CHEN Zheng Sheng ' f® 1F 3 * & # & I CHEN Bo
Ling Fr B 25 ¥ & £965.00% Heroic Hour & % 77 f& A%
TWEAEBREEE -

3. /R FE PR &£ ¥ « CHEN Li Zi ~ CHEN Zheng Sheng * [

E# - BHEZMCHENBo Ling AR — {55 T =
25 A 0 It 12 7545 A Heroic Hour 2 8f B2 21T AL AN ©

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HB BLEX
FTiEBEALTZI ARBIAREDRNE
EMAT(BRARBESEIESITHRAR
SRR K EBERO T EERBEES R
HEGKPIEBEREEELRNBETEN
TRMAMmERIORE -

BIEW(EE)ERERAT —B-=FEH

55



56

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEeRE(E)

Share Option Scheme

The Company currently has in place a share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Group.

The current scheme was adopted on 29 May 2020 (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”), which replaced the previous share option scheme
that expired on 19 May 2019. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2020 Share Option Scheme would remain in force for
10 years from the date of it becoming unconditional. All conditions for
the adoption of the 2020 Share Option Scheme have been fulfilled on
2 June 2020.

The eligible participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme may
include, among others, directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme shall be 316,244,072
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. As at 1 January and 31
December of the year under review, 316,244,072 options may be
granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme.
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Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
2020 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

An offer of a grant of share options shall be deemed to have been
accepted and a share option to which the offer relates shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have taken effect
when the Company, within 21 days from the date on which a share
option is offered to an eligible participant, receives the duly signed
offer letter from the grantee together with the number of shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any
currency as the Board may determine) in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant of share option thereof.

Since the effective date of the 2020 Share Option Scheme and up to
31 December 2020, no share option was outstanding under the 2020
Share Option Scheme, and there was no share option granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
since its effective date and up to the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions

During the year under review, the Group had no new connected
transaction entered into or continuing connected transactions that
were ongoing under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules that were not
fully exempt. In prior year, the Group had entered into the following
connected transaction(s) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules that were not fully exempt under the Listing Rules, and
which was supplemented to and amended during the year under
review.

1. Lease Agreement for the Group’s production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory

On 17 November 2020, EM & EtAgmAER AT (Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangzhou Bawang’) as
lessor and FEE (FEM) BR2AF (Bawang Guangzhou Co.,
Ltd.*) (‘Bawang Guangzhou”) as lessee entered into a lease
agreement (the “2020 Lease Agreement’) for the Group’s
production facilities, office premises and staff dormitory (“Leased
Premises”), which are located at 468 Guanghua 3rd Road,
Bawang Industrial Complex, Baiyun District. The 2020 Lease
Agreement was for an original term from 1 December 2020 to
30 November 2021.

On 28 April 2021, Guangzhou Bawang as lessor and Bawang
Guangzhou as lessee entered into a lease renewal agreement
(“2021 Lease Agreement”) pursuant to which Guangzhou
Bawang has agreed to lease to Bawang Guangzhou Leased
Premises at a monthly rental of RMB1,090,000 for the period
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024 and RMB1,240,000 for the
period from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2026 for a fixed term of five
years, which is exclusive of management fees and other
outgoings.
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On 1 September 2022, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a supplemental lease agreement (the “2022
Supplemental Lease Agreement”) to reduce the area leased
within the Leased Premises, which took effect from 1
September 2022, at a monthly rental of RMB829,542 for the
period from 1 September 2022 to 30 June 2024 and
RMB943,699 for the period from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2026,
which is exclusive of management fees and other outgoings.

In accordance with IFRS 16 (Leases), the premises leased
under the 2021 Lease Agreement has been recognised by the
Group as right-of-use assets with a book value of approximately
RMB52,884,000 as at 1 July 2021. As such, the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Lease Agreement has been
treated as an acquisition of right-of-use assets which
constituted a discloseable and connected transaction of the
Group under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the 2021 Lease Agreement had been disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 23 April 2021, and the 2021 Lease
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder had
been approved by the independent shareholders in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 4 June 2021. The 2021
Lease Agreement then superseded the 2020 Lease Agreement
upon the 2021 Lease Agreement becoming effective on 1 July
2021.

As of 1 September 2022, being the effective date of the 2022
Supplemental Lease Agreement, the Leased Premises as a
right-of-use asset had a book value of approximately
RMB33,816,000, and the entering into of the 2022
Supplemental Lease Agreement constituted a variation to the
terms of previously disclosed 2021 Lease Agreement pursuant
to Rule 14.36 and the note to Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules.
Details of the 2022 Supplemental Lease Agreement together
with the implications under IFRS 16 (Leases) had been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 September
2022.
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As Guangzhou Bawang is beneficially owned as to 20% by Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company, and 80% by his six brothers and
sisters (who are children of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan) with Mr. CHEN
Zheng He as the trustee, Guangzhou Bawang is an associate of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He and a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the lease payment paid
by BaWang Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang pursuant to the
2021 Lease Agreement (as amended by the 2022 Supplemental
Lease Agreement) were approximately RMB11.4 million.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transaction. The Company further
confirms that the related party transactions that are set out in Note
32 under the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this annual report fall within the definition of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and these
transactions complied with the relevant connected transaction
requirements thereunder.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interests in
contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions” in this annual report, no
Director or controlling shareholder, or an entity connected with a
Director or a controlling shareholder has or had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
which was subsisting during or at the end of the 2022 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.
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Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. There was no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group under the above schemes.

Corporate governance

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors are of the view
that all the code provisions set out in the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Directors and Senior Management

EZheEBEEAER

Directors

s

During the year under review, the Board consisted of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information
in respect of our serving Directors:

NEBEER EXEEALEEM
B B AR EER= 2B TN
TEE TRHIMANECEENET
an

Name Age Position/Title

%" & FiR B8 / B8 #67

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 61 Chairman and Executive Director

PR BUR 55 4 TERWTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 34 CEQ and Executive Director

PRIEBS 4 BEERITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 68 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

mEERELE BEEMBERNTES

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 68 Independent non-executive Director

RIFERSEAE BYFRTER

Dr. WANG Qi 43 Independent non-executive Director

ITmiEt BYFRTER

Dr. LIU Jing (Appointed on 43 Independent non-executive Director
27 May 2022)

BB (R ==
AA-++HEZET)

BWUIERITES

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 61, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 30 years. Mr.
CHEN entered into the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of
the Company) in 1994. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city. Mr. CHEN is the father of Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
Mr. CHEN is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company,
and he is also a director of Fortune Station Limited and Heroic Hour
Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 34, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou and afterwards certain other subsidiaries of the Group
since then and started to involve in the planning of sales, marketing,
advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr.
CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to the chief executive
officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly responsible for the
daily administration and management of Bawang Guangzhou. Since
mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible for the supervision
and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and promotion
campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works closely with the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company on
formulating overall strategic plan and management of the Group, and
executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and distribution. Mr.
CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and Remuneration Committee
Member with effect from 9 December 2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the
degree of bachelor of commerce from the University of Toronto in
2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 68, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03398), from 2005 to 2008, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was
the chief accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong &
Associates (Industrial Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and
from 1994 to 2003 respectively. He also worked for a certified public
accountant firm from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years
experience in corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation
administration, and project consulting. He is an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG
obtained a master’s degree in human resource management from
Macquarie University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (5R#Z%E 5t &), aged 68, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has extensive experience in information technology,
financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr. CHEUNG is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a director and
lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
human resources management and information technology
consultancy services to its clients (including government organisations
and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an independent
director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August 1999 to
August 2015 an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to January
2018 and Trio Industrial Electronics Group Limited (Stock Code:
01710) from February 2017 to May 2022. Mr. CHEUNG has been an
independent non-executive director of ENM Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 00128) since June 2016, and Kin Pang Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 01722) since November 2017, companies whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr CHEUNG
joined Self Strengthening Service Centre Limited (B & RS+ O ER
/x#]), which is a company limited by guarantee and an approved
charitable organization, as a director on a voluntary basis with effect
from 30 September 2019. Mr. CHEUNG had held several positions,
including Assistant Manager, Manager and Senior Manager between
September 1980 and July 1991 in Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG
had been a partner of Coopers & Lybrand since March 1995, and
had been a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers &
Lybrand was merged with Price Waterhouse into
PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998 until his resignation in May
1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of Operations and Finance of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between July 2004 and
April 2008 and a consultant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between April 2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG
obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from The University of Calgary in
Canada in June 1979.
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Dr. WANG Qi (EXfE L), aged 43, was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company on 17 April 2018. Dr. WANG
is currently the vice director of the Dongguan Institute of Opto-
electronics, Peking University. Prior to that, from 2010 to 2012, he
was a research associate in the Department of Electronic and
Electrical Engineering of the University of Sheffield in the United
Kingdom, and also worked at Seren Photonics Ltd, a company in the
United Kingdom which focuses on the development and
manufacturing of semi-polar and non-polar Gallium Nitride templates.
From 2012 to 2014, he was a postdoctoral research fellow in the
Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering of McGill
University in Canada.

Dr. WANG is a member of the Dongguan committee of the Jiusan
Society, the chairman of the Songshan Lake branch of the Dongguan
committee of the Jiusan Society, a vice chairman of the technological
innovation promotion committee of the Dongguan Committee of the
Jiusan Society, an entrepreneurship mentor of the Dongguan
Business Incubation Association and a member of the Dongguan
Songshan Lake High-tech Industry Development Zone Science and
Technology Association. He is also the legal representative and an
executive director of the Dongguan Yanyuan Technological Assets
Management Company Limited. Dr. WANG has been elected as a
member of the 14th session of Dongguan’s Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative (FB A RBUARE @25
+fERETEZEE®EE) in 2022. He was recognised as a special
professional of Dongguan City (3rd Class Distinctive Talent) by the
Office for the Administration of Talent Affairs of Dongguan City in
2017.

Dr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics (magnetism) from
Lanzhou University in 2001. He studied at the Department of Physics
of Peking University from 2002 to 2008. He obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in the Faculty of Engineering Department of Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from the University of Sheffield in the
United Kingdom in 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERREBEEAER(B)

Dr. LIU Jing (BIiE18+), aged 43, is currently the Associate
Professor and the supervisor of postgraduate of the School of
Accounting, Guangdong University of Finance & Economics. Prior to
that, from 2013 to 2019, she had successively served as a full-time
teacher, the director of laboratory and the Deputy Dean in the School
of Accounting and Finance, Beijing Institute of Technology, Zhuhai.
From 2009 to 2013, she worked for Beijing Focus Marketing
Consultant Co., Ltd. (JEREEZHEEMARAR]), a company
providing consulting services of strategic positioning in China.

Dr. LIU is currently a review expert of the expert team for Zhuhai
Assets & Equity Exchange Service BT ERERZ 5 LT EEKE),
a vice chairman of School-Enterprise Alliance for China Accounting
Education Transformation Development (2 B & 5120 & #2831
B 88), a business mentor of Zhuhai Science and Technology Business
Entrepreneur Alliance (Ek&8mEHTAIZEREBE%2) and a business
mentor of Zhuhai Employment and Business Entrepreneur
Association FR/ETILERIEH ).

Dr. LIU obtained a bachelor’'s degree in management from Hunan
Business College (currently known as Hunan University of Technology
and Business) in 2001. She completed a study of Advanced Studies
Course for Postgraduate in Accounting (& 5+ 22 2 1/f 5 4 sR 2 B TH)
at Central University of Finance and Economics in 2010 and then
obtained a master’s degree in management (part-time) in 2012. In
2019, Dr. LIU obtained a doctorate degree in management from The
Macau University of Science and Technology.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 75 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

17/F., Chubb Tower, Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB ®E (B)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 101 to 105.

The key audit matter
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FREXSER

RERMANEXHE BREZFEAR
ATERARGEEVBRRPREEN
FE -ATTEERBERSEAMBHRRM
AETKEESEBLEEEE Mg
RULEFHREFERER -

BOBEKERAOFMR
2HGEAVBRERM TN NEIONEESE
106 BEMEZ SR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB14,281,000, net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
RMB4,997,000.

R-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H B£EEZEHENKE
WEHANRE14281,0007T R REFEAD A
R # 4,997,000 7T °

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based
on expected credit losses (“ECL”), which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience and
forward-looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

BIRUEFTRENREEEREREERL(RE
HEEBRX]D EEZETEERRXERMATKLEE
BT E AT A TER & AR BB A B AR 1R AR B Y o

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the impairment
assessment of trade receivables involved a significant
degree of management judgement and may be subject
to management bias.

BAEE S RUSR KR EFEEESBRET =
B AREESRRERREFNFGESIREREENS
RHAE - EFAIEFAERRRENER

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model
on impairment assessment of trade receivables.

BB B 5 I o 4E B U2 /8 5 5 MR HORL (B
S T8 12 1 6 R LD AR 2R IR 1 A £

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
estimates for impairment allowance by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.

HfEERREREERMMELD L HEHNER B
AHAELZOBBEMNERE FEELBAXXELR
15 TR B B AR OB AR O B BT R M B R R B R B REY
HEEBGIRERGNSIENE-

We have also checked settlements from debtors after year
end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2022 on a sample basis.

BPEMERETFRUNBRREHSARI N LR
T _F T AT HEZIRRESBEERN

R o
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 97.

The key audit matter
BREEZSHE

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB27,056,000, net of accumulated
allowance of approximately RMB1,239,000.

RZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—"H BEEBEEFEEHAR
" 27,056,0007C © RETFEH AL A R 1,239,000
7T|: o

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the involvement of significant
judgement and estimation on the assessment of the net
realisable values with reference to the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions.

BAEFEENHERGEESBARESFSTE BS
CHESEMBERRTNEEZLE  URSERHTH
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ENFENEARHEHMHEE -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
management’s estimations and judgements on the
assessment of net realisable value of inventories and
identification of obsolete item based on their subsequent
usage and selling prices subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and current market conditions.

BMRHMBHEFEETETREY RN TR
OB AL RIS AR B R ER AR
1T AL - DA R B R 3R B R B e AR P E AT RY
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We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation
of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on a sample basis and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the allowance
made based on subsequent usage and sales, ageing
analysis and current market conditions. We have also
assessed the assumptions and critical judgements used
by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB ®E (B)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on page 108.

The key audit matter
BREEXSERE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB40,515,000, net of
accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB103,657,000, and right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB31,301,000.

BHIFI—ET-_—_F#+-_A=+—HB KX&EENYE-
M= N RED & A ANRKA0,515,0007T @ JF K&t
FEEBXRDH A ARE103,657,000 L E BEEEDN
AR #31,301,0007T °

We have identified impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter
because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the determination of the recoverable
amount of these assets required significant management
judgement relating to items such as level of revenue and
amount of operating costs and discount rate.

BMEREETVE BEAREBNEREEEN
MEFREAREREE ARtMYGREMBERE
MEEN MELEENANEHENBERZ
FIRB BNRAKYE - BERASBENAIERNE
NCEER) -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by reference
to the historical information. In particular, we have tested
the future cash flow forecast prepared by management on
whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the board
of directors and compared the budget with actual results
available up to the report date. We have also evaluated
the appropriateness of the assumptions, including the
sales growth rates and gross profit margin against latest
market expectations.

BARANEBEAREFECHRKBEELEEEEMLE
RE - ERBERERMBEABRBNSEEETME -
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We have also evaluated the discount rate employed in the
calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market
sources.

HPMBEEENAERENELEGABBNTISE
RE  HEHAETRAAAEEREENTRE -

As any changes in these assumptions and input to
valuation model may result in significant financial impact,
we have tested management’s sensitivity analysis in
relation to the key inputs to the impairment assessment.

ARELBREIMEERLG ANTAZ(EAIESE
HELEEANMBEE BMACKAATEEESR
EREFENEIERATBAOGEZMESN -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company
and the Audit and Risk Management
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB RS (B)

s MERFNEERAUBELERE
RO RERERE  LRED
ERNEZIEE BEESEOYHESR
BRELENEIBREARA
EHABREFEERTHEER
E-MEXRNTHERREEANTE
ERRX ATFEEREEMHEF
RBIZEEESEAMBHRRAD
HEEREE AWREBERET
RAEBEIARITHER - AITH&
mEERHERBEIMBE B MR
THEZEBRE AWM KREFHX
BRAUESHEERETHBAARSE
REWEES -

s HEESESAMBRRNHERT

B RBVNAT(BEREMNRE)
UEEEEGEMBERRLES
DA I RABR S N FEIR -

s NEKEAZERBAXRHEHNM
BENESRETNERZERE A
RAEMBHRRBERER - ATEA
BERE EENHTEEENE
T RITINARRITHERE R &
EeEEE-

AITHEF TENFIEEMERF &
BEZARTPHTIERR(BREAEEHN
EARK)REMERERZNEARERE
ZEQETAER-

AT RAEZLEREEZESFELR
B ERATCETERELMENER
ER UHAMERAERRAIETEZ
SRR Y8 7 1 RO AR AN EL = B A AR RE
REHEE(ER)  BELREETER -

BIEW(EE)ERERAT —B-=FEH

73



74

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS ()

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

=
=)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

2T~

8 ME A & E W am R

FH_A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—EgE=-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T T AR®ET T
Revenue BER 7 246,341 273,604
Cost of sales 855 AR (153,822) (174,573)
Gross profit £ 92,519 99,031
Other income H A 8 3,565 8,056
Selling and distribution costs HE Ko KA (83,507) (84,307)
Administrative expenses THAX (32,379) (29,345)
Reversal of impairment losses/ 2 rWENRORE
(impairment losses) recognised in Bk @B TR
respect of trade receivable 21 2,993 (940)
Other expenses H A X (524) (29)
Operating loss K EE (17,333) (7,534)
Finance costs BB A 9 (2,098) (1,550)
Loss before taxation MR 1B (19,431) (9,084)
Income tax expense FriS3 i F X 10 - -
Loss for the year attributable to owners 7N A BB AFE(E 2
of the Company FREE 11 (19,431) (9,084)
Other comprehensive/(expense) income E fih Hi A 2 E Uz A
Item that will not be reclassified TewEH D ERED
subsequently to profit or loss: mIEE -
Exchange differences arising on e EmeLd
translation of financial statements BRI EE [T X =88
from functional currency to
presentation currency (404) 213
Loss and total comprehensive expense AN A & B A JEHE R
for the year attributable to owners of BB K2 HE X B4 %8
the Company (19,835) (8,871)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic HR RMB(0.6144) cent RMB(0.2872) cent
AR ®(0.6144) 1l AR®(0.2872)fl
Diluted g RMB(0.6144) cent RMB(0.2872) cent

A B #(0.6144) 1L

AR#(0.2872)ll

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

TECCFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R MBI &

As at 31 December 2022 R=—Z=-—F+=-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= T —

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®ETT ARBEFTT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment = 17 40,515 61,938
Right-of-use assets AEEE 18 31,301 52,211
Time deposit E HATF K 22 50,000 50,000
121,816 164,149

Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 27,056 40,815
Right to returned goods asset RETFE 2 #EF 20 737 795
Trade and other receivables 25 N EH i EIWER 21 20,214 26,308
Amount due from a related party JiE Uk B8 B 7 BB 32(a) = 242
Time deposits THEX 22 - 4,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRNIR S 22 74,404 59,269
122,411 131,429
Current liabilities RBERE

Trade and other payables Z 5 K H e BR K 23 79,640 83,627
Amount due to a related party JE 1~ BB Bt 5 30 32(a) = 22
Contract liabilities S4B E 24 4,261 11,233
Refund liabilities EiERE 25 1,030 1,150
Lease liabilities HESRE 18 8,173 10,137
Provision FHiREB A 27 - 338
93,104 106,407
Net current assets REBEEFE 29,307 25,022
Total assets less current liabilities EEFE 151,123 189,171

Non-current liability krRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 25,103 43,316
126,020 145,855
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

FEFBRRE (B)

As at 31 December 2022 R=ZL==4+=-A=+—H

2022 2021
—2=-= —E_—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TxT AR%Tx
Capital and reserves BRAR R G#E

Share capital A% AN 28(a) 277,932 277,932
Reserves w1 28(b) (151,912) (132,077)
Total equity S AEEE 126,020 145,855
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 166 were SH75E166EHMGA MK RERSKESS
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 M -ZET_=F=ZA=+HH# ETHHER

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: REBEBEET:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan Mr. CHEN Zheng He
BR RSR BR IE 88
Director Director
EF EF

TEEREEZERERAF

TECCFER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=
nﬂ‘ ¢

= N/

/ N I|\|:|l|\

X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE -2 — —

FH_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREREEAEL
Share Share  Statutory Merger Translation Other  Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BE  REEE EERE A0FEE EXRE HitRE 2R REAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR
(note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(MisE28) (PIFE28() (MisE2s()) (PIFE28(b) (FisE28(b))
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%—F—H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (33,104) 9,421 (1,559,693) 154,726
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (9,084) (9,084)
Other comprehensive income for 2 A% I
the year
Exchange differences arising on BINEBIREZ
translation of financial statements ~ EH ZE
from functional currency to
presentation currency - — - — 213 - - 213
Total comprehensive income/ FEREZEBAN/(ZHE)
(expense) for the year B - - - - 213 - (9,084) (8,871)
At 31 December 2021 —E-—F
=f+—H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (32,891) 9,421 (1,568,777 145,855
At 1 January 2022 —E--#—H—H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (32,891) 9,421 (1,568,777) 145,855
Loss for the year FNEE = = = = = = (19,431) (19,431)
Other comprehensive expense for ~ E 2 E A
the year
Exchange differences arising on BNEBREZ
translation of financial statements ~ E X ZE
from functional currency to
presentation currency - - - - (404) - - (404)
Total comprehensive expense for R 2 37 58
the year - - - - (404) - (19,431) (19,835)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Z
+ZA=+—H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (33,295) 9,421 (1,588,208) 126,020

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022



) \\/ \

%N% %
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
fﬁi //HJE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—2=-= —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EE
Loss before taxation HATEE (19,431) (9,084)
Adjustments for: BT AE L A2 -
Bank interest income |ITH B A (1,959) (2,140)
Government grants B AT 6 B (168) (1,022)
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of BAME MEMKE
property, plant and equipment oz RIENEIEE (291) (3,299)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for inventories FERE(EH 207 11 (357)
Gain on lease modification MEEmz W (529) —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMENMERETES 21,911 21,017
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 10,611 11,526
Finance costs % E A 2,098 1,550
Obsolete inventories written-off o1 BRI & TR EE 1,961 1,220
Bad debt written off AR H 1,718 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment o5 REKERCRE
losses recognised in respect of trade BREE), R
receivables (2,993) 940
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEYWHE  WERZHE
equipment BX 461 21
Gain on waiver of legal cost EEEBR#B R WS (338) -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment MEME WBEMKRE - 8
Operating cash flows before working capital LEEeEHII KEES
changes mE 13,062 20,384
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FER L/ (3Em) 11,787 (14,371)
Decrease in right to returned goods asset R[ETFE 2 MR 58 125
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 K& H fib & U 7% T8 5, 2
(3 hn) 8,919 (3,095)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H Ath & 5kIR
OB ) /35 0N (2,599) 3,035
Decrease in amount due to a related party JiE Uk R B O SRR (22) (52)
Decrease in contract liabilities aREERD (6,972) (4,127)
Decrease in refund liabilities EEBERD (120) (300)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS AND &Z#E4XHNHER L
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRETHELENERESEEE 24,113 1,599
FTER(EE)ERERAT —E-Z_FF%#K
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HeaRenEX(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR F T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BELEZE (1,964) (1,664)
Withdrawal/(placement) of time deposits Y (7 10 7E BifE 3K 1,000 (51,000)
Bank interest received BRI R B 459 2,140
Repayment from a related party B EER K 242 —
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and BEME  HMENMFREDN
equipment Frig§ kA 86 6
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBFANRESEE (177) (50,518)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MmEETE
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHEAE (9,349) (10,912)
Interest paid B F B (2,098) (1,550)
Government grants received W B B JT‘T HWEhe 168 1,022
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEEBFMAMNE S E8E (11,279) (11,440)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND B4 ERESZEWm/
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) B8 12,657 (60,359)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZzRERBESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 62,269 122,342
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERgHnTE
CHANGES (522) 286
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOF REXKRZzHESNBEZEY -
THE YEAR (note 22) Bl4gR1TE&E T IR €
(M 3E22) 74,404 62,269

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022



e MR R M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

General

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; and (2)
50.43% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at
Bawang Industrial Park, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group where the primary economic
environment is in the PRC. Other than the subsidiaries
established in the PRC which functional currencies are RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e sk i wt ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2022:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Amendment to IFRSs Annual improvement to IFRSs
2018 - 2020

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fa B RREE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to

International Financial Reporting Standards

(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June
2020 and December 2021
amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Insurance Contracts'

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

I\VT\

B M B REMN T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The Directors anticipate that, the application of other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) hair-care products; (i) skin-care products; and (iii)
other household and personal care products.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

Right of return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the consideration received from
the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the goods that will be returned. For
goods expected to be returned, the Group presents a refund
liability as “Refund liabilities” and an asset for the right to recover
products from a customer as “Right to returned goods asset”.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS16, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract or
modification date, as appropriate. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate.

the lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable loss for the year.
Taxable loss differs from loss before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(Continued)

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value of
inventories represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-
term (generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather for investment or
other purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as
short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets. The Group’s financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (‘ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (note 8).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic; or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) the debt instrument has a low risk of
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and (i)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. TEEHHEXR®wm
Financial instruments (Continued) &mT R\
Financial assets (Continued) &FEE(\E)

Definition of default B TE

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right of use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions
about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience, existing market conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operated and forward-looking information at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment
and it may be necessary to make additional impairment charge
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. At 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately RMB14,281,000
(2021: RMB19,969,000), net of allowance for impairment of
trade receivables of approximately RMB4,997,000 (2021:
RMB7,990,000). During the year ended 31 December 2022,
reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
RMB2,993,000 (2021: impairment loss of trade receivables of
approximately RMB940,000) was recognised.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value and ageing analysis of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB27,056,000 (2021:
RMB40,815,000), net of accumulated allowance of
approximately RMB1,239,000 (2021: RMB1,228,000). During
the year ended 31 December 2022, obsolete inventories
written-off and allowance for inventories of approximately
RMB1,961,000 (2021: RMB1,220,000) and RMB11,000 (2021:
reversal of allowance for inventories of approximately
RMB357,000) were recognised, respectively.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The future cash flow is estimated based on past performance
and expectation for market development. As the current
environment is uncertain, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainty.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
RMB40,515,000 and RMB31,301,000 (2021: RMB61,938,000
and RMB52,211,000) respectively. Reversal of impairment
losses in respect of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB291,000 (2021: RMB3,295,000) has been
recognised for current year. No impairment losses were
recognised for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying values of property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB40,515,000 (2021: RMB61,938,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB21,911,000 (2021:
RMB21,017,000) has been recognised for the current year.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022

4,

BRESTTHEM A TE
EEEZETERERE @)

HEAREERZEERE (R

MR BERBMBNERERE
W {E ()

ARWREREREBENFEM
mMEERAH(BEETRINHE
RBEARTHOZE)HEN -ARE
AR EEMN - BarwBRE TR
gﬂ%ﬁ+ﬂﬁfWMHﬁT%E
M- EBRRMGE BERRAER
BRAPOHRERGIEBRE  AJ LY

AEGcHEELEEATE-
RZE_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
ME - BEMRENEAREE Y

BRMEED A5 AR 40,515,000
7T A A R #31,301,000t( = & =
— % AR #61,938,0007T M A R
#52,211,0007T) - B B @ % -
MELEZEBENBREBEBAOARE
291000 (Z T = —F: ARK
3,295,000) i 2 # RN E B F E ©
RZEBE - —FM_ZT-—F+_58
=+—HI EVE BEMEE
LERREERNAFERERRE
Bk

A% BENBRGRHEASS

AEEEME BELRXBEAHE
AZzB# BHEFI4%E50%H H &
e -AEEBME BMEMZE
WRALEFEBRANEAERASH B
TESEHUAKETERFERASEE
ME BMEMIERESKREHE
FEEENEt - B2 ==
F+-_A=+—H ¥ BEHM
REREEEY AR 40,515,000
T(ZZE = —F: AR 61,938,000
JC) e WTEH AR 21,911,0007T (=
T —4F: AR¥21,017,0007T 7T)
AN F SRR o



Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised, management judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, net of
time deposits, bank balances and cash and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. Financial Instruments €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &I ABRR
2022 2021
—E_—_C T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
Financial assets TREE
At amortised cost (including cash B A (BIEEESM
and cash equivalents) REeZEEY) 141,221 134,105
Financial liabilities TRAE
At amortised cost B AR 75,661 81,238
(b) Financial risk management objective and (b) EHEAKEEEERRKE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include time AEBE v FTEZEcRTABRE
deposits, trade and other receivables, amount due from a EHTFEF B 5 RHEAME KK
related party, bank balances and cash, trade and other IH - Y 5 RIE - RITE
payables and amount due to a related party. Details of the EhkBE BHRHMENK

financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. TR

(b) Financial risk management objective and b) AR EEAEREREE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Market risk % & B
Currency risk B R b2
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency RKATETZEMB AR ZHE
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. ERIINEEE K& i &
Approximately 2% (2021: 2%) of the Group’s sales is HINERR ANEBAD2% (=
denominated in currencies other than the functional T - —F2%)ZHENEE
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group ‘f’? *&g TheE BB LN 2 B ST
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. 8o NEBE B Ay & (1] 90 1
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and %j/tin R o NEE @ B 54N
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure CIMEBENER TEERE
should the need arise. ﬂ /EP BARIMNER R ©
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AREFENUIINESFBZ2EEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at FEEREGRBARZEEEE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: AN
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2022 2021 2022 2021
=B —_T_—F ZBZZF _T_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TR ARETT
RVB AR 1,727 4,557 7,617 7,405
HK$ BT 649 1,685 1,067 961
United States dollars (‘USD”) 7t ([t ]) 2,601 1,345 - -

In the opinion of the Directors, no sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances (see
note 22). The management of the Group considered that
a reasonably possible change in interest rates would not
have a material impact to the Group’s result.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from time
deposits, trade and other receivables, amount due from a
related party and bank balances and cash. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. €T Ru@m

(b) Financial risk management objective and

b) ERMEREEEREKE

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
ECL collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For non trade-related amount due from a related party,
the Group has assessed whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered that other receivables to be low
credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or with good
reputation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e sk i wt ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available, reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. €T Ru@m
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) AR EEAEREREE

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category
P |

Description

1

(#&)

15 5 B2 (48)
EEFERERMO
AEEREHEERRFRR
BT HIEE :

Basis for recognising ECL

BERHMGEERNEE

Performing

JE1T

Doubtful

R

Default

(ol

Write-off

For financial assets where there has low risk
of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)

REGHF2EARRKE 8 TR ER
AKREERBREBEL MR RELF
EREERBER1IZ2E)

For financial assets where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)

NEBE & B R S INER SRR B R 2 B R g
BYIZHERARBEZEEMERELEE
WE(ERER22%E)

Financial assets are assessed as credit
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer
to as Stage 3)
E-EXZEEHEZTREENRK
REMEGFAEEATHNEZER  ZE2R
EERRGEERE(WEABERIZE)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
ERBRTEBSAHNGRENBRAR
SER AR se U A /R

TEEREEZERERAF

12-month ECL

12EAEHEEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired

ERHEMEEBHE —
AREBEEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

ERHEHMEEER —

BERAEEERE

Amount is written off

EREBECE M

TECCFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e sk i wt ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. T T A
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) EHERAKEEAEREREE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Credit risk (Continued) EE RS (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) EFEEE RO E)
The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s TERXTFW T AERSHEEZ
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure FEEMAERZ AR E‘E i
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. FERRERTTCEERR -
2022 2021
—E-CF —T-—F
Gross Gross
Internal 12-month or lifetime carrying Loss Net carrying carrying Loss  Net carrying
Notes credit rating ECL amount  allowance amount amount allowance amount
AL 128 REEE REEE
st FPR ERARREEEA BE|  REEHRE KEEE gE REEHR EEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%BTR AR%®TR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables 21 Note Lifetime ECL (not credit 19,278 (4,997) 14,281 27,959 (7,990) 19,969
impaired)
B 5 WK B &t ERAHEREERX
(RBEEEERE)
Amount due from 32 Performing  12-month ECL - - - 242 — 242
a related party
JE Ur BA Bt 7y B17 12EAERBEEER
Other receivables 21 Performing 12-month ECL 2,536 - 2,536 625 — 625
H i UK BT 12EARBEERRE
Time deposits, 22 Performing 12-month ECL 124,404 - 124,404 113,269 — 113,269
bank balances
and cash
EHES BT PREARAEEER
RITEBRER S
146,218 (4,997) 141,221 142,095 (7,990) 134,105
Note: The Group has applied simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the Misyr: "NEFCDEAMEOBRBRMBRE

loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details are set out in note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. €T Ru@m

(b) Financial risk management objective and

b) ERMEREEEREKE

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical location is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 99% (2021: 98%) of the total trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has concentration of
credit risk, as 32% (2021: 41%) of the total trade
receivables, which was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

(#&)
15 & W B (4)
EEEERRYOE)

$E@§mﬁﬁ§ﬂ“'ﬁﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. T T A
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) 2REAREEEERBE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B R B (4E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIFWAREFRZIESTE S G
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities BEMEBEAG TS L E
and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn up based [ReoiZRk DENRANEEBIEL
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities YRR RHBHTEESHE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BZARFERBESTEH T H
required to pay. The maturity dates are based on the HkETESRmBEMEEAR
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest Z HEHA B EEERR AR
and principal cash flows. cKRFBEMERANER®
ﬁ =3
On demand Total
or within Over undiscounted Carrying
oneyear 2-5years 5 years cash flows amount
REXRY RITR
—FR CZEREF HEZF HeRLE FEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%TR AR%®TxR
At 31 December2022 R=-ZTE=-=
+=ZB=+-H”
Non-derivative FTELHER
financial liability
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b & <
IE 75,661 - - - 75,661
Lease liabilities HEERE 9,510 26,431 300 36,241 33,276
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6.

£/ T B2 @

b) ERMEREEEREKE
(#%)

Liquidity risk (Continued) B R B (48)
On demand Total
or within one undiscounted Carrying
year 2-5years Over 5 years cash flows amount
BRERK AR
—FR ZERE HALF BenLHE KEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT AR®TI ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2021 R-Z=-—&
t=A=+-8
Non-derivative kTESRMEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables £ 5 2 K ft f&
A 81,216 - - 81,216 81,216
Amount due to a related [ {1 B3 &t /5 7B
party 22 - - 22 22
81,238 — — 81,238 81,238
Lease liabilities HEARE 12,415 46,925 330 59,670 53,453

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

(c)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of non-
current and current financial assets and current financial
liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2022 and 2021

approximate their fair values.

TEEREEZERERAF

() LIanREMEZ&MIA

ARREERS ARKAY
ﬁ%%&%m/}lb@)%ﬂé%&ﬂw@

SREABER B _FR=
-+ -A=+—R &
HREE LA A 4 FE -

TECCEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M BHRRATE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods, net of
discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows.

EXRERDIBESR

EEBEHRMBKITMMEE LR
TERNBEERA  SEFELER
DA

2022 2021
—_E__ —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR T T
Revenue from contracts with customers 7t B B2 Bt % 3R & X B 155
within the scope of IFRS 15 HEEAEFNEHKWA
Disaggregated by major products BETEERDHE
Manufacturing and sales of the household 5Kk & {E A # 32 B &4 HY
and personal care products HEEMBEE
Hair-care products EEEM 211,115 232,166
Skin-care products EEEM 87 1,179
Other household and personal care HEMRA LG AZEREM®R
products 35,139 40,259
246,341 273,604
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BREVIANERESRYE
customers by timing of recognition
2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARE&ET T
Timing of revenue recognition KWABANEE
At a point in time H— R, 246,341 273,604

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on types of goods delivered. The
Directors have chosen to organise the Group around differences
in products. The segments are managed separately as each
operating segment offers different products which require
different production information to formulate different strategies.
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

o Hair-care products

o Skin-care products

o Other household and personal care products

Operating segments including manufacture and sale of other
household and personal care products have been aggregated
into a single reporting segment after taking into account that

none of which are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

The CODM is provided with segment information concerning

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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—EARARIEN DI AEBRE
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TEE aﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁéhf BED

segment revenue and result. No analysis of segment assets or UL AR o BB EE W 15 EE no
segment liabilities is presented as they are not regularly WEEMOHTEEEE T\ 7E B 1A)
provided to the CODM. FTEBELRFERE B LEY
CPHEIT O -
Segment revenue and results DHEXTERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UNTRAEEIKRAHRE D HBWA K
by reportable and operating segments. EEDHT
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HttxAR
EEEm EEEM BABREER ait
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—S--fFf -_T-—F ZB--f —_T--F ZB--f _F_-F ZB--fF —F_-F
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'OD0  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTE ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Sales to external customers HERINBEP 211,115 232,166 87 1,179 35,139 40,259 246,341 273,604
Segment (loss)/profit DE(EE)/ B (12,044) (2,389) (22) 211 (5,994) (7,384) (18,060) (9,562)
Bank interest income BRITFIBHA 1,959 2,140
Other income Hep e A 1,315 2,621
Corporate and other unallocated i@ BARABRZEf

expenses X (4,645) (4,283)
Loss before taxation HA R (19,431) (9,084)

FTER(EE)ERERAT —E-Z_FF%#K

125



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e sk i wt ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the (loss from)/profit earned by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, gain on
sales of scrap materials, government grants, net foreign
exchange losses, central administrative costs and directors’
emoluments. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

,%i/\ﬁﬂ‘% Bi%%l‘fhf(,.\,a)

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. # % ZE K 5 IE R (&
Other segment information Htt S EH
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HtRAR
EEEM EEEM BAEEER CH)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—®B--f -—T--F ZEB--E -—Z--F ZB-_"& -—FT--% ZB--F —T--—
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETRE ARETT AR®TR AREKETT AR®TR ARETR
Amounts included in the TELBERE
measure of segment results B ARE
Additions to property, plantand 1% - BiE KR E
equipment m 580 865 - 4 96 150 676 1,019
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% « BiE & & &
equipment neE 18,778 17,834 8 91 3,125 3,092 21,911 21,017
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  fif BB E & 9,093 9,780 4 50 1,514 1,696 10,611 11,526
Interest on lease liabilities HERBEANE 1,798 1,315 1 7 299 228 2,098 1,550
Loss on disposals of property, RENE BRELER
plant and equipment LoL0EEFS 395 18 - - 66 3 461 21
Write-off of property, plantand ~ REW% - BE R
equipment BY = 7 = - - 1 - 8
Gain on lease modification BEREEARZ
e (459) - - - W - & -
Bad debt written off ZREH 1472 - 1 - 245 - 1,718 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ )E g % i B 3R R
impairment losses recognised 2 REBE/
in respect of trade receivables (‘}JEJZ EEBEE) (2,565) 797 (1) 4 (427) 139 (2,998) 940
Reversal of impairment losses EABRERND
recognised in respect of % BRERZE
property, plant and equipment BROREERX (250) (2,796) - (14) @) (485) (291) (3,295)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) 77 & [B
for inventories 9 (303) - ) 2 (52) 11 (357)
Obsolete inventories written-off BT ERE 1,680 1,035 1 5 280 180 1,961 1,220
Amounts regularly providedto THEHRATEEL
the CODM but not included REENSE
in the measure of segment BREERDH
results EENTER
Bank interest income BRITFBHA - - - - - - (1,959) (2,140)

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

TECCFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country

of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and right-

of-use assets.

7. BEBERDHER @

HERH

AEBREEBETESPERE G
EER)MES -

EPWAFEEDREBERINE®

NEEFE- ﬁFxﬁ@JéFE’Ji‘M@uE
DREBEEEERAMEMNE(WNEY
¥ BEMEKERTERAEEE) ME

;Eo

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIBEFHEA FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F =ZE—-= —EFE - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSBTRT ARBTT AR®BTR AR®%TET
The PRC (country of domicile) A B (FT#E B ZX) 243,239 271,087 71,022 113,420
Hong Kong BB 1,136 1,655 794 729
Thailand EEd 344 201 - —
Outer Mongolia NG 216 — - —
Russia % 78 H 350 — - —
Malaysia 5 i 1,056 661 - —
Total EEt 246,341 273,604 71,816 114,149
Information about major customers FEERER
Details of the customer contributing over 10% of total revenue HAREFRBKASEBBIONHE

of the Group are as follows:

FRERAIRMT

2022 2021

e i

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®BTRT

Customer A’ ZHEA 26,785 39,663
! Revenue from segment of hair-care products 1 A E D I U
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fa B RREE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Other Income 8. Hlg A
2022 2021
—=== —E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T T
Bank interest income AT A B A 1,959 2,140
Gain on sales of scrap materials BB R = 569 903
Government grants (note (a)) BsE e & (M3 (a) 168 1,022
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of B RAME - W= MR E
property, plant and equipment VR IR =T R 291 3,295
Gain on waiver of legal cost FEEERBE 2 W 338 —
Others = 240 696
3,565 8,056
Note: B 5
() Various government grants were granted to the Group in respect of application (a) AREBESERFEEEBRERPHE

of Chinese herbs in daily products. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other

contingencies related to receipts of these grants.

Finance Costs

P& IR T B) © B AR BT RO R A0

Hip s i A RIR A SR -

9. MKEHR

2022 2021
—s-= —EF——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥ETTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERNE 2,098 1,550

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

TECCFER



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

10. Income Tax Expense

10. AT 18 B B
2022 2021
—_E_= £ - —4F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®T ARET T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
— Current year

—RNEE

TEEEMEHRTERMAER])

(@)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and
State Taxation Administration on 17 January 2019, the
small-scaled minimal profit enterprise with an annual
taxable income below RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000
included) is entitled to a preferential tax treatment of 75%
exemption of taxable income and application of income
tax rate as 20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021. On 2 April 2021, a circular was issued by Ministry of
Finance and State Taxation Administration, the corporate
income tax was halved on the basis of above preferential
policies and the policies were extended from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2022. Certain PRC subsidiaries of
the Group were qualified during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE since 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M BRRKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T - —F+_A=+—HILFE

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 10. FT B H B # @)

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided b HZEZZ-_—_FEk_ZFT=-—%
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the + A=+ —HIEFEIE
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to BEBNER ENERTR
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December BEERBBRNEERENZE
2022 and 2021. n%fﬂ/ﬁnﬂ@ T F Rk

T _—F+_A=+—HLHF
ﬁg o

BEREHERRBERES
RZEERER AEEEEB
HE-_ZE-_—_FR-ZT=-—%F
+ZA=+—RLEFEHMNF
ERENABETHENENM
T8 o

(c) Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman (©)
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

REGFAGEaRMEMES W

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ROFEANBNAEHE R RN
and other comprehensive income as follows: HEP) R :
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR F T
Loss before taxation MRl E1E (19,431) (9,084)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax 1% ZN ) FT 15 51 Bl R 25% 5t &
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) imm_;_—i 25%) (4,857) (2,271)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMBEERR ,Z% 22 A
operating in other jurisdictions MEHETE 6,120 2,929
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A~ 7] 135 & FH 2§ 18 s &
purpose 1,063 780
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HARTMA 2 BB &
purpose (3,140) (2,379)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMEEE MG E 2,427 1,694
Income tax on concessionary rate BEMEME/M (63) (1)
Utilisation of deductible temporary E) A A 4R 0 MY oK TR SR Y B B
differences not recognised MER (1,550) (752)
Income tax expense for the year FEAMBHIH = —

TEEREEZERERAF

TECCFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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B M B REMN T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB336,840,000 (2021:
RMB321,306,000) and RMB38,309,000 (2021:
RMB37,722,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC (except for HNTE) will expire in five
years from the year in which the loss originated, while the ones
incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire under
current tax legislation in Hong Kong. With effective from 1
January 2018, the tax losses incurred by HNTE will expire in ten
years from the year in which the loss originated. No tax losses
have expired during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021. No deferred tax asset had been recognised as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 in respect of the estimated tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB344,927,000 (2021:
RMB355,261,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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10. Fr 8 % B # @)

HE_ZT_—_F#+-_A=+— E
SEEFEANMMEENIT D
ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%
A A R #336,840,000T (= F = —
F: AR #321,306,0007T) F1 A R
38,309,000 t(ZFE = —F: AR™
37,722,0007T ) ° £ 1 B35 N 51 i &9
FRA (SR EERN TEE
MBEEL BEFEBEEZABF
NE®R: MEEBEMA T RB AT
BAEMBMBEL BEREBERTH
MEER  TgEme =T —N
F-—A—HR sHEBEGCEESE
mm%%%hﬁﬁﬁi*itmi
| p-t @E*g::iﬂ_?_
—¢+_H_+ HIEFER -
EEMBRBEBELAELR B - &#E
E-__EN-T-—F+=-A= +
—H - EEEC*X%'J/F?/RE’]TTTE/HH

M HABRECHRAEENTAMG
BB K -

HE_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H"
AEBEAHKREREEZEENHNARE
344,927,000t (ZE=—F : AR
355,261,0007T) ° A KAl BE A FE
TR0 F AT AR 2R 4K 40 1) K 0 A AR
ZRE AR ERCEMEBEEERERHE
AENEEEE=ESR -



11. Loss for the Year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

M. FRE B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AN

\:./\M‘% Bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ(@)

FABEZME/GIA) THIER

2022 2021
e —— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
Auditor’s remuneration % R B & 1,012 994
Cost of inventories recognised as an RAERI ZFERK
expense (note (a)) (M 3E (@) 153,811 174,930
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BEMREITE
equipment 21,911 21,017
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 10,611 11,526
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEEWE BEIKEDN
equipment =P S 461 21
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  REEM % - = & &1 - 8
Net foreign exchange losses ME 3 5 18 F 8 594 222
Research and development costs R AR 23K R
recognised as an expense (note (b)) (B 5% (b)) 14,123 15,035
Bad debt written off EERFE I 1,718 —
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for ?f_ f kB 2 2 O 1%
inventories (included in cost of inventories  (BIEAERRAERDN
recognised as an expense) FEKAF) 11 (357)
Obsolete inventories written-off (included in 1 8917 & 3 & (R IE R R
cost of inventories recognised as an ERMNGFEERAS)
expense) 1,961 1,220
Notes: Bt 5
(@) Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of (@ BM2ARI 2 EERADEDME  BE

property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and staff
costs of approximately RMB20,068,000 (2021: RMB20,141,000),
RMB10,611,000 (2021: RMB11,526,000) and RMB18,262,000 (2021:
RMB20,066,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in the
respective amounts disclosed above.

(b) Included in research and development expenses was staff costs of (b)
approximately RMB4,549,000 (2021:RMB6,041,000) which has been included
in staff costs in note 12.

TEEREEZERERAF

RENE TRAEEEFTEREIX
K5 R4 B A R 20,068,000 (=% =
—F ) AR #20,141,0007) - AR
#10,611,000L(ZE = —F: HARE
11,526,0007T) }& 49 A R #18,262,0007T (=
T = —F: 5 AR %20,066,0007T) ° M+
SHEHUEDRBEEUNLBESREF -

MEERTRENEIXNANRARE

4,549,0007T (=% = —F: AR #6,041,000
) EERELMEEMNBIRAF -

TECCFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

12. Staff Costs 12. EE R K
2022 2021
—E=-C T - —4F
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Staff costs (including directors’ and chief BEKRKN(BEEELES
executive’s emoluments) comprise: THRAEBN&ESH2) :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e BRI KREF 46,506 50,795
Contributions to retirement benefits sohemes RIKEFET 85K
(note 31) (MF5E31) 4,033 3,887
Termination benefits BHIR 1B A 4,482 _
55,021 54,682
13. Dividends 13. R E
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 Hz—_22-_—_H+=-A= + H 1k
December 2022 (2021: nil), nor has any dividend been ¢ B E RN BREMNRE(ZE
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: nil). ——F:\E) BE2ERHBME fﬁ 7T Ei
KERRKRE(ZEZ—F: &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M BRRKE(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ—Z - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. Loss Per Share 4. BRREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

$ AIEA ANEAL 2 5 E AR K #
EEREEREATS8ETE -

2022 2021
—_E__ —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR® T T
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ FALAGTE AR QA RIEE AFE
the Company for the purpose of basic and  JE {5 & I& B 7K & #5% E5 18
diluted loss per share /&5 18 (19,431) (9,084)
2022 2021
—=E=-= —EZ—%F
’000 000
T IR F i
Number of shares g2 §E|
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A A5t E & IR E R EIEH
for the purpose of basic loss per share MEFHLBREE 3,162,441 3,162,441

Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 or at the
end of both reporting periods.

HREREZE_T__FN_T - —
FTZA=ZT—HLEFELEE
E/‘j}%;%jél‘: R lﬂjj&fgﬁfﬁ
EEEGREANEERAR-

TEREEZERERAT —E-_FFK
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Emoluments

15.

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2021:
six) directors and the chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Executive directors

EERBSTBRAEME

ENZENER(ZF
RNE)EERRBITHA
wmr

—F:
2B

hi | |
K -

BE—_FT__—_+=-RA=+—H
L E

Independent non-executive directors

HITES FHTES
Mr. CHEN Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan ZhengHe (Chief Mr. WONG Dr. NGAI Wai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) executive) Sin Yung Fung Kin Wing Dr. WANG Qi Dr. Liu Jing Total
REBREE REBXE
(X&) (BRHTE) EHERLE HREBE:L RERXE IndEL ABEEL &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TR AR®Tn AR%UTR ARBTR ARETR AR®Tn ARTR AR%TxR
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Kt &£ (a)) (Kt (b))
Emoluments paidor &7 & 3 E i B
receivable in AEMES
respect of a BERE
person’s services X sk E
as a director, e
whether of the
Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees we = - - 115 240 185 110 650
Emoluments paidor ~ AARHEK B
receivable in AANES
respect of director’s  FHEBH
other services in = B R
connection withthe ~ X EH
management of the ~ HI# &
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments Hinhe
Salaries e 2 - 124 1,034 - - = = 1,158
Contributions to RINER
retirement benefits STEIER
schemes - 6 16 - - - = 22
Total emoluments CHEEA - 130 1,050 115 240 185 110 1,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEmR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 15.EERBETHAEME
Emoluments (Continued) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 8F_=E_—%+=-A=4+—H
ILEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HITES FaiTES
Mr. CHEN ~ Mr. CHEN Zheng
Qiyuan He (Chief Mr. WONG Sin Dr. NGAI Wai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) executive) Yung Fung Kin Wing Dr. WANG Qi Total
BREUR % & RIEBEE
(XF%) (BE#TE) EEREE REEET REREE IHET At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREFT ARBTR
(Note ()
(T3 (a)

Emoluments paidor A2 AHEKE
receivable in ARAMEER
respect of a HREBLMAR
person’s services ERHHE
as a director,
whether of the
Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees we - - — 250 166 166 582

Emolumentspaidor XA R HEM B
receivable in ARNEER
respect of director's  HEEH
other services in EERBXM
connection withthe ~ FEH MM &

management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments Hip e
Salaries e 28 - 120 995 - - - 1,115
Contributions to RKEFIEE
retirement benefits N
schemes - 6 15 — - — 21
Total emoluments AF#E - 126 1,010 250 166 166 1,718
Notes: i
(a) Dr. Ngai Wai Fung retired as an independent non-executive director of the (@) REEEINR_T-_—_FRA-+tHRE
Company on 27 May 2022, EHEIFERITES -
(o)  Dr. Liu Jing is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the ) BlEBtR-_ZE-_—FRA-t+ttBE®ZE
Company on 27 May 2022. TEBYIENITES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

15.

16.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Emoluments (Continued)

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive of the Company nor any of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2021: one) was a Director whose emolument is included in
the disclosures in note 15 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2021: four) individuals were as follows:

16.

RZB-_—HFN_FT_—F+_H
St REFEOHAHENIA-

@E%%EWE$ AERET
PR BEBECFEMERAEREES
Fﬁﬁﬁ%%%%@

HE-_T-—_F+=-A=+—H1t
FE - AEEEEERRATEEN
ZyREMETMNHE (=T =—
F4E)o

EEF M
AR BBHFMALT  —fr(=F=
— G —fi) REE  AHFMHU L

a6 TE - BEREAMMOE(ZT =
— 4 POAL) BB A 89 B EF 1S a0
T

2022 2021

—E_— —EFE - —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBEFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REF 1,563 2,083
Contributions to retirement benefits BIREFEEIH R

schemes 333 518

1,896 2,601

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB862,000 (2021: equivalent to
approximately RMB830,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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N )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. % - BERRKE

Office Immature
Land and Leasehold Motor  equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
buildings Machinery improvements vehicles andothers  furniture plants plants in progress Total
T ES-$i0 ¢ BAE THREMG
BEN B BAXE EBERIA REREM RRIEE EELEN LEMED ERIR @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARBTT AR%ETT AREFR
COST 2%
At 1 January 2021 RZB-—-F
—A—H 5,494 124,300 201,698 11,790 24,306 932 43 1,395 10,465 380,423
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - (211) - - - - - (211)
Additions WE - 372 - 43 358 - - 246 - 1,019
Disposals HeE - - — (45) (94) - - — - (139
Transfer [k - 3,295 - - - - - - (3,295) -
Write-off W - - - (17) (12) - - - - (29)
At 31 December 2021 and M-Z-—%
1 January 2022 +-A=t-H
R-TZZ%
—A—H 5,494 127,967 201,698 11,560 24,558 932 43 1,641 7,170 381,063
Exchange realignment L - - - 666 1 - - - - 667
Additions "E - 266 - - 232 - - 178 - 676
Disposals & - (4,720) - (22) (19 - - - - (4,761)
Transfer [ - 791 - - - - - - (791) -
Write-off b - - - - - - - - (6,379) (6379)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-__F
+ZA=+-H 5,494 124,304 201,698 12,204 24,772 932 43 1,819 - 371,266
ACCUMULATED RiRE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F
—A—H 2,566 88,267 168,504 11,222 20,332 852 27 - 9,965 301,724
Exchange realignment ExHE - - - (188) - - - - - (188)
Depreciation provided for £ R 17 & & &
the year 247 3,916 15,771 222 859 - 2 - - 21,017
Impairment losses BN BRER
reversed in profit or MEBX
loss - - - - - - - - (3,295) (3,295)
Eliminated on disposals & F 8 - - - (40) (72) - - - - (112
Wiite-off FE - - - (16) 6) - - - - 21)
At 31 December 2021 and R-Z=—4F
1 January 2022 +-A=1+-H
R-B-Z%
—A-H 2,802 92,183 184,275 11,200 21,114 852 29 - 6,670 319,125
Exchange realignment EXRE - - - 599 - - - - - 599
Depreciation provided for 4 47 & % f&
the year 247 5,067 15,561 99 936 - 1 - — 21,911
Impairment losses BERERRN
reversed in profit or MERX
loss - - - - - - - - (201) (291)
Eliminated on disposals i & B 414 - 4,177) - (20) (17) - - - - (4,214)
Wiite-off FE - - - - - - - - (6,379) (6,379)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--f
+ZA=+-8 3,049 93,073 199,836 11,878 22,033 852 30 - - 330,751
CARRYING VALUES i)
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-—F
“A=t—H 2,445 31,231 1,862 326 2,739 80 13 1,819 - 40,515
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%
+-A=+-H 2,692 36,784 17,423 360 3,444 80 14 1,641 500 61,938
FIER(RE)EZERERLAR —BEZ-FF® 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of rES

property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings

T+ R EEY)
Machinery

28

Leasehold improvements
KEMEHNR X H
Motor vehicles

BHTA

Office equipment and others
WRNEREREM
Display furniture
ETREME

Bearer plants

EEMEY

17. % - BER&RE @

RYE - BB MR E K
AEBREEBRANKEE(WME)
‘IA TP FERT A A F BB RE
B!

residual

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 20 years
H B AT 802 54, 204F

15 years

154

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 10 years
HEAR A S 104

5-8 years

5-84F

5 years

5%

2 years

24F

3-25 years

3-25%

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to certain
impaired construction in progresses were completed and have
been used for production, the Directors conducted a review of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and determined that
reversal of impairment loss of approximately RMB291,000 (2021:
RMB3,295,000) was recognised in respect of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment in which the recoverable
amounts were determined on the basis of their value-in-use
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ—Z - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. Leases 18. HE
() Right-of-use assets () BFHESRE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®Tr

Buildings BEY

At 1 January R—A—A 52,211 10,853
Depreciation e (10,611) (11,526)
Lease modification HEEBNK (10,299) 52,884

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 31,301 52,211

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings. The
lease terms are generally ranged from one to thirty years.
None of the leases include variable lease payments.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered into a supplemental lease agreement to amend
the lease terms of the current production premises, office
premises and a staff dormitory (note 32(b)(ii)). The Group
remeasures the existing lease liability of approximately
RMB10,828,000 and a corresponding adjustment of
approximately RMB10,299,000 is made to the right-of-
use assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into certain lease agreements to extend the lease
of the current production premises, office premises and a
staff dormitory for 5 years (note 32(b)(ii). The Group
remeasures the existing lease liability to include the lease
payments covered by the new lease and a corresponding
adjustment of approximately RMB52,884,000 is made to
the right-of-use assets.

AEBRRZEYHNHEELHE -
HEHBHR —RRB1F EI0F -
EULHEHTRENENEE
B

—Htiﬁ $EIMJﬁﬁ
HE W& ﬁawiF%ﬁ
WASEHNREIRES
(EwmmmﬁﬁﬁﬁLﬂW
Ao ASEERBREHEAR
4 A R #10,828,0007T N 18 &
FE T H AR 10,299,000 6
FREEE-

HE—FT-—F+=-_A=+—
BFEEHE A8 &%:7T T X
BHEBBUNERAENEEL
i WA HMMEIFTSLER
T 55 HE HR (M 7E32(0)(i) °
AEBEHAEHEENHEESR
& BEFHAEMRENEE
NRE HENBT —EBAR
" 52,884,000T W& FA#E & E
T o

TEREEZERERAT —E-_FFK
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

18. Leases (Continued) 18. & @)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HERE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—14F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARE&ET T
Non-current JETR B 25,103 43,316
Current b 8,173 10,137
33,276 53,453
Amount payable under lease liabilities HEAaBREMMZRE
2022 2021
—E_= T - —F
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000
AR¥T T ARE&ET T
Within one year —E R 8,173 10,137
After one year but within two years —F A EWMFUAA 9,208 10,620
After two years but within five years MF L ERFLAR 15,663 32,447
After five years FEFEUE 232 249
33,276 53,453
Less: amount due for settlement within -~ J& : 1218 B X fE {7 2% T
12 months (shown under current GIRRBEE IE—I—)
liabilities) (8,173) (10,137)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 1& | 85 49 &~ 518
12 months 25,103 43,316
2022 2021
—E_C - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
At 1 January wW—A—H 53,453 11,481
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHE 2,098 1,550
Lease payment ME & (11,447) (12,462)
Lease modification HMEBW (10,828) 52,884
At 31 December R+—-—_HA=+—H 33,276 53,453
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18. Leases (Continued)

19.

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fa B RREE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

18. & @)

(iii) MRREREZEH

2022 2021

—E-= T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T AR T T

Depreciation on right-of-use assets FTREEENE 10,611 11,526

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGBMNEXE 2,098 1,550

Expenses relating to short-term leases S HIF EHEE F 118 105
Gain on lease modification (included in HEET 2 WEm(BER

cost of sales) SHE R ARF) 529 —

(iv) Others (iv) Eft
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total cash Hz_Z2-__4+=-_HA=+

outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB11,565,000 (2021: RMB12,567,000).

—HLEFERN HEMNRESR
Haamay s AR E11,565000
T(ZEZ—F: AR K
12,567,0007T) ©

Inventories 19. &
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AREETF T
Raw materials R R 12,573 21,914
Work-in-progress b Lo 3,287 5,950
Finished goods AKX @ 9,095 10,332
Packing materials and consumable goods £ % # ¥ 234 7% & 2,101 2,619
27,056 40,815

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain slow-moving
inventories, of which allowance was made previously over their
net realisable values, were consumed and/or sold. As a result, a
reversal of allowances for inventories of approximately
RMB357,000 (2022: nil) had been recognised and included in
cost of sales.

22 - —4F+_-_A=+—HI1t
FERN FEBHEEF (KRR
HEEBA T MO R FE) K
SHAEM/SEABBEREBE - AL - 4
ARBS57,0000(ZE - —F : &)
MEEHREBEED HEREDIL
ASHER A ©

HBIER(REERERLIE —B--FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

20. Right to Returned Goods Asset 20 B 2R
2022 2021
—_E_= £ - —4F
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET AREET T
Right to returned goods asset O &%) 2 #EF| 737 795

21.

The right to returned goods asset represents the Group’s right
to recover products from customers where customers exercise
their right of return under the Group’s returns policy. The Group
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the
number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value

method.

Trade and Other Receivables

B R 52 8
?’th&.ﬁrﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

REEENEIRELRAEEGER
BEAEBEEEREITHERE
%}EJ‘I&@FDDO ZEBEMBERER
FAREEEIEARSE
HEE o

= 1 Y

21. B R H M EWFRIE

2022 2021
—s=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR F T
Receivables within the scope of IFRS 15 at E Bl PR B 7S 3R & E RIS 1557
amortised cost comprise: # B (A /9 FE UNBR U 2R
EJZ KEIE:
Trade receivables B 5B 19,278 27,959
Less: allowance for impairment of trade BB SRR IRREEE
receivables (4,997) (7,990)
14,281 19,969
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & B J& # #L 38 1~ 3% 1,864 3,717
Other prepayments H B R IE 1,402 1,739
Bank interest receivables FEUWER 1T B 1,500 —
Non-income tax receivables EFTIEFE HSZ = 131 258
Other receivables H b g Y 3k 1,036 625
20,214 26,308
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RS Rk MY ()

1. E 5 K& H b FE W F3E ()

AEBAHESIEFPFHEEHR
BENK - U TANGREHK
BIEETRAER B BNEERH
EHNNERESERER(EMBREKE
SERFBERE) NERE DT -

2022 2021

—E—-= —F - —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFTT
Less than 3 months L HA31{E A 14,281 19,320
More than 3 months but less than 6 months % FA 31 A 18 L 726 {E A - 649
14,281 19,969

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’
current financial positions, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operated and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As the trade receivables related to a number of customers with
common risk characteristics and the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s difference customer bases.

AEBEFENEZRBEHAEBLRE
HEASENEARENREERE
EWE 5 RFXFEREEBKER
BREEREY2ZEBANBEER
G ik MBS A B B AT AR o
MEL A AR EBANTER
E EHRARERMETENEEL
BERLNEREBEBRNEZAER
KB ARKIE NIRRT EEL AR

P AR 3R o B SRR - T A O 0R 4R
B AR R R o

BRXZEREERSIRZEAEER
RERFEHENER BEAEEMNE
S EERRERIARATIREP
HENBERRAGTERZEEZR &
NBEBHRENEXEHERGE
—FSEIEBNTREPE -

ATER(EEERERAT —E--FFK
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146

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 1. E5 K H it FE W FKIE )
The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables based NREBRERPAREER - BL{#E
on past due status of customers collectively that are not BT TTEENE S ERR IE TR
individually significant as follows: FRAEEE{=E/B LW T -

Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2022 R-—-EBE-_—_F£+-_H=+—H loss rate amount allowance
n#EEH REEE
FAHIE AR wmE WEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bokk AR®TrT AR®Tx
Less than 3 months L R31E A 0.72% 14,385 104
More than 3 months but less % R 31 A8 L 61E A
than 6 months 100% 692 692
More than 6 months but less % 618 A B L A 121E A
than 12 months 100% 100 100
More than 12 months Z 1218 A 100% 4,101 4,101
19,278 4,997
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-Z—F+=—A=+—H loss rate amount allowance
¥ FEEE|
TEHERIE R K BEE RAE A
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Aokt ARBFIT ARETFT
Less than 3 months LHA3IE A 0.02% 19,324 4
More than 3 months but less % 7 31@ A 18 4 7 61# A
than 6 months 17.06% 782 133
More than 6 months but less % 7 61& A 18 4 712 1# A
than 12 months 100% 1,092 1,092
More than 12 months Z 1218 A 100% 6,761 6,761
27,959 7,990
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 21. E 5 K& H {ih & W FIE (@)
Generally, trade receivables are written-off if there is information —RBRHE MR EEEBERE ﬁk /\
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and H R B & ,E N 8 & 18 & B Bi
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. During the year ended THRER BHEWEIZG® %BZ .E
31 December 2022, approximately RMB1,718,000 (2021: nil) H- RN —_EZ_Z_F+=—_A=+—H
was being written off. JJ: MEEA - HARELT 8 0007T

BERWERETHE(ZE—F:
?ﬂf\)
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade féj SREWGBERERLBEENE
receivables are set out below: R N
2022 2021
—ZE_= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%®TE

At 1 January R—H—H 7,990 7,050
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment (REBXEE),
loss recognised (note () BAEBKER (@) (2,993) 940

At 31 December R+t-A=+—H 4,997 7,990

Note: 5T -

(a) The Group writes off trade receivables where there is information indicating that () MEBEBEERE  SEEMEE S ERE
the debtor is in serve financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of REBAGET RN - 850 kEaHR
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has E FISEfNEBSABRHBEREBEARE
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs earlier. BREUAREEAE) -

TEREEZERERAT —E-_FFK
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

0

(ii)

22. Time Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash 2. EHFER/BITEERE S
Time deposits (i) EHER
2022 2021
=== T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TRT AR%®FTr
Non-current FE 7 B
— Time deposit with original maturity — BB —F
over one year THEATFEX 50,000 50,000
Current Nk
— Time deposit with original maturity — = @A A AR E®
within three months 7 HTF K - 3,000
— Time deposit with original maturity — iR =8 A B H 8
over three months THFER - 1,000
— 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents (i) RERBELEED
2022 2021
—EF__ T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARE&EF T
Bank balances and cash BITEFEERS 74,404 59,269
Time deposit with original maturity within -~ = 1& B 7 2| 83 &9 7F B 17 =X
three months - 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReFEEY 74,404 62,269

As at 31 December 2022, cash at bank carries interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates ranged

from 0.001% to 0.63% (2021:

0.001% to 0.60%) per

annum and time deposits carry interest at fixed rate of 3.0%
per annum (2021: 0.35% to 3.0%) with original maturity of

3 years.
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23. Trade and Other Payables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fa B RREE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23. EZ R HMENRE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Trade payables g 5 N RIE 35,710 42,695

Payable for acquisition of property, plant Y BE R

and equipment REEEER — 1,288
Promotion fee payables ERHEEER 10,091 9,271
Accrued payroll ERFTE 1,897 2,452
Non-income tax payables FEFTIS T E 1~ 3K 3,979 2,311
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRIELRBRER 27,963 25,510
79,640 83,527

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

REEZEZEHZAZIZESHEN

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RIERERBRZEB DT -
2022 2021

== —EF - —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Within 1 month 1A A Ak IZEK 21,451 16,173
After 1 month but within 3 months 1@ BBERIMEARN 14,259 26,622
35,710 42,695

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

o 3 -

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

BREEEATHEERNNI0ED
B o RE B A EER MR R E IE
REREMARNFEEEERR

TECCFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

24. Contract Liabilities

25.

2022 2021

—_E_= £ - —4F

RMB’000 RI\/IB 000

AR®T T AREET T

Advances received to deliver goods HHEYME W 4,261 11,233

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2022
is RMB11,233,000 (2021: RMB15,360,000). There was no
revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior year.

HE-_T-_—_F+=-A= +*Ei
Jt’ﬁ%pmﬁ’\]%fﬁgﬁ/@%T@Zi
o FE— H—Emm,\@ﬁﬁ/\Eﬁ%
11,283,000 (ZFE = —F : AR
15,360,0007T) - BE &8 F —F E &
THERTESEBENEERELRT
BRI A -

Refund Liabilities 25. BB EE
2022 2021
—E__ T~ —4F
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBTRT AR®TT
Refund liabilities BERE 1,030 1,150
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return products BRHREASPREREEE =A%
within three months of purchase. At the point of sale, a refund BREEE -FHEY  AztemE
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is EIMEMAERERREME  WIKK
recognised for those products expected to be returned. The AMERHEFAE - ZEBFBHEE

Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BEmR M (E)

26. Bank Loan Facilities 26. RITERERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has available RBEFER AEBEEE K
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately RMB500,000,000 EEANETEIREEOARIE
(2021: RMB500,000,000). 500,000,000 (= FE =~ —4 : AR

500,000,0007T) °

27. Provision 27. TR %EE

Provision for litigation
FAAGIREA
2022 2021
=== T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®ETRT

At 1 January Kn—H—H 338 338
Decrease during the year KA FZR D (338) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - 338
Details of the litigation are set out in note 34. SRAARE R M sE34 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves 28. RA K %4
(a) Share capital (a) Bg=
Number of
shares
B EE
000 RMB'000

Th ARETET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FIE B IT0.102 @K
Authorised: AT E AR

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZE-—F—HF—H"

1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —Z - —4+ — A
=t+—B =%
—A—BRZZE=-__F
+—-_HA=+—H 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid: BETERENZEEK:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZE-_—F—H—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —Z - —%+ _ A
=t—R ZT-_—F
—A—BR=ZZT=-=F
+=ZA=+—H 3,162,441 277,932
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Act (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the share
premium are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, Bawang Guangzhou. Transfers to the
reserves are approved by the directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Fa B RREE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

28. I A K @ @)
(b) GEMEEERAE

0]

(ii)

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

B & & R

ARARBRA G ENERX
FMEBSEREEER)
FTRE - -FRIFEBEREZIR
B H H#E - AR A
BRRNEEREXBH I
HOER  SAARAAR
SEBRANEERKRDIK

AL e

& TE & iR

AERMEIREBRBESE
USSR SN Tz
TENEARBEEMND
NAIERRIL - ERE
BEEBIEMNESSH
JE ©

FITENEBE(RE)RK
BB R A A Ty A B A AL
MNEBELE  HAR
BB R R &R
B R A & D 10% 0 )F
mA(BEATEENES
BR)ZE—RETHB
BEEREEHEIREA
AENZEEBNARER
BENTEME RN50% 45
- EEEZHEAENT
EmFEA ADIRRKERE
1T °

—ROXE W B R B
NEFENBR(E)
TR B IRERT A A
MR AR B DA R
FHTHB A E R
BEBRRRA HETA
BRITRONEHRIBIRN
A EARE25% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the controlling shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the controlling shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of the non-interest bearing loans to
the subsidiary at an effective interest rate.
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company on 29
May 2020, the Company adopted a 2020 share option scheme
(the “2020 Share Option Scheme”) to attract and retain the best
available personnel to provide additional incentive to (i) any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, business or joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”); or (i)
the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, business or joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, business or joint
venture partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

29 L)\HR*E n‘l:|

TEEREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 29. UREZEX UR B A E

(Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Option
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of their respective associates (including
a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects includes a
substantial shareholders independent non-executive directors,
or any of their respective associates) in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

No share options were granted under the 2020 Share Option
Scheme since the adoption. As at 31 December 2022, there
was no outstanding options granted under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the

30. &2 7 B AR R &

Company
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®ETT AR®ETFTT
Non-current asset FEREBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIE LT E A A
& —* -
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H A R 136 385
Amounts due from subsidiaries L NG (a) 146 131
Bank balances and cash RTEFERES 649 1,647
931 2,163
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H b FE 1< 5018 1,167 1,061
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAST KT8 A R 3R (@ 2,865 2,525
4,032 3,586
Net current liabilities FREAaE (3,101) (1,423)
Net liabilities FEE (3,101) (1,423)
Capital and reserves BAR KB
Share capital % 7 277,932 277,932
Reserves G (b) (281,033) (279,355)
Deficiency of equity T (3,101) (1,423)
* Less than RMB1,000 * ZesEERNARA1,0007T
Notes: BT -
(@) The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. (@) ZREERE fEYRERKEE-HZE

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Directors have
performed an impairment assessment based on the expected credit loss
model. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of amounts due from
subsidiaries was approximately RMB146,000 (2021: RMB131,000), net of
accumulated allowance for impairment loss of approximately
RMB1,583,362,000 (2021: RMB1,542,647,000).

R ZFRZT_—F+ZR=+—
BILEEE ZEFEMREBHEEBAESR
EOTRESGH B2 -_—_F+=
A=+—H1lt ERHEBARKEE S
HAHARE14600T(ZFT=Z—F: AR
#131,0007T) - IR R R EEFHAR
#1583,362,000L(— T - —F: ARW
1,542,647,0007C) °

FIER (EEERERAT —B--FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

BeE - ()

30. & 7) B & AR R 3® ()

(b) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (b) FREFNEBHERDAT :
Translation Accumulated
Share premium reserve losses Total
BAHRE EREE RitER FRc
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT ARETTT ARBEF T
(note 28(b)) (note 28(b))
(P 3£ 28(b)) (Fff 3£ 28(b))
At 1 January 2021 W-—E-——%&—HA—8” 1,401,815 (110,378) (1,569,832) (278,395)
Total comprehensive income/  FARZE KA/ (ZH)
(expense) for the year = — 640 (1,600) (960)
At 31 December 2021 and R-_ZTE-_—F+=-HA
1 January 2022 =t+—Ak
—E--F—H—H 1,401,815 (109,738) (1,571,432) (279,355)
Total comprehensive expense  4F N 2 H % H 458
for the year — (1,219) (459) (1,678)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F
+=—A=+—8H 1,401,815 (110,957) (1,571,891) (281,033)
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31. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(@) The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

(b) Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee per month.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above. Forfeited contributions in respect
of unvested benefits of employees leaving the Group’s
employment cannot be used to reduce ongoing contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB4,033,000 (2021: RMB3,887,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

31. R K& R 5 R K

(@) FEXEHE

RETFTEBELSEHER PE
MEBARZEMPEBRE
BT # 48 4R A 2 TE BR BRI
1& M &T 8 (Tax a1 &11) - B R
BRAAIAERIEZ-—FEAS
Lo 1A &% 5t 8 5K - B 1 BT
BEREXNEKEENEE
BIRE -

(b) FEERME

REBERBIMERBEREE([RIE
&8 BB RG RARE
AEENSHBENAKRENE
BREERYBREEFE -8R
RIS CEERAEHAME
ENH BAXEAENZES
A - AKEZBEBIEZ5%
A B - BREEOHK
ERASEABT1,500 °

AEEEBRT LA RS WEE
tEBSES M RIKREMEN
BEM BEEMBEOARBEBER
EHRHERRERAA BIER DR
BHER -

BEaXRPz2RAIHARE
4,033000C( - T - —F: AR¥
3,887,0007T) ' BIAREE L ZE 5T 2
FIEM—TEB DB ZHR o

HBIER(REERERLIE —B--FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

32. Related Party Transactions NR.BHERS
(a) Related party balances (a) RABESERER
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial [ﬁfﬁ SENERRBBHEEIN
statements, the following balances were outstanding at SWHREBREAKENZ &S
the end of the reporting period: T :
Maximum outstanding amount
Amounts due from/(to) during the year ended

related parties

31 December

BE+-A=1+-HLEER

FEW (1) BB 5 RE NEERENSHE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F —E-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT = AR®TR ARBTT

Non-trade related HELZHH
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., BN EFL iR BB A A

Ltd. (“Guangzhou Bawang’) (note ) ([ & N & £ J) (Fff %) - 242 242 242
Trade related B 2156
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging BMTEXRBEMBER

Materials Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou DA ([EMNER]D

Qiancal’) (notes if and i) (P =i i) - (22)
Notes: B 5 -

0] Guangzhou Bawang was ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN Zheng 0
He. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the management
of the Group considered the credit risk of the amounts has not been
increased significantly and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

(ii) Guangzhou Qiancai was under the control of the close family members (i)
of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the director and the chairman of the board of
directors.

(i) The credit term granted by Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days based on the (ii)
invoice date. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amount due to
Guangzhou Qiancai was unsecured, interest-free with 30 days (2021:
30 days) credit term and aged within 30 days (2021: 30 days).
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e B AR FEERE R EEE
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Z:—H

w

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A R R M R (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. BB LEXRS @

(b) Related party transactions (b) RBARXS
The Group had the following material transactions with its AREBEE@HRALTETUAT
related parties: EARH
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—14F
Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
XEME ARBTRT ARETE
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iii) - 99
B 3 R BR B R (B S i)
Guangzhou Bawang Rental fee of production plant and
office premises (notes i and ii) 11,417 12,432
HEBBEMPASNES
(B &E AN
Notes: Bt 3 -

(i)

The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the
prevailing market price.

On 17 November 2020, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a new lease agreement with 1 year of lease from 1
December 2020. The monthly rental fee for the production premises,
office premises and a staff dormitory are RMB1,040,000 in total. On 23
April 2021, the lease agreement was renewed with monthly rental fees
of approximately RMB1,090,000 from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024 and
approximately RMB1,240,000 from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2026. On 1
September 2022, a supplemental lease agreement reduced the leased
area from 49,928.17 sq.m. to 37,997.70 sq.m., and the monthly rental
fees to approximately RMB830,000 from 1 September 2022 to 30 June
2024 and approximately RMB944,000 from 1 July 2024 to 30 June
2026. Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 17 November 2020, 23 April 2021 and 1 September 2022
respectively.

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

BEERR LRRZ TR —RE%E
BERRABEBBREDLET 5
REERERBITHE-

RZZ=ZTF+—A++tB X
EMNAENFEIFRET —OREE
WME - MHASHANBIEEE =%
—EE+ A -AHBAR—F
WHAERS FHESOABARE
1,040,000 R=ZZT = —F WA=
+=B BIBRMNMEMBLIEN
THER#E B=T=_—FtA—
AZE=-ZT-NFXA=+HHHED
EERE WRASHUKEIRS
# AMES A AR 1,090,000
T MBE-_ZE-_NELA-—RBEC-
ToARFEANAZTHHEAESE N
Z BB A AR % 1,240,000 7T °
RZZE-_—FAA—B BETENM
HEMNBIZEET HMaMEE
fpek - BELIR7E T & M7 5 49,928.17
K R A =37,997.70F K
Aflega=T==_FnA—8=Z%
ZE_NMERAZTHANARE
830,000 HE-—E-_M&E+H—B
ET-RNFRNAZTBEHBEOE
AR #944,0007T » Lt iHEEFFE D
AEKFIARRRR T _TF+—
At+BH - Z—ZE-—FWMA=1+H
T —FhA—HWHAER-

TECCFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(ii) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of such lease liabilities is
approximately RMB32,964,000 (2021: RMB53,129,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has made lease payment of
approximately RMB11,417,000 (2021: RMB RMB12,432,000) to the
related company.

(iii) The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

32. BB R 5 ()
(b) RRBET R 5 ()

S

(i

(i)

(%)
(&)
R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H1,
EEHAEEENEEEELNAA
R #32,964,00000( =T = — F :

A R #53129,0007T) - B E =&
ZZHFF+ZA=+—HLEFE %
BEDHMEBARINTTHARE
11,417,000t & (Z T = —4F:
AR #12,432,0007T) ©

Bl TR SHTE ETRAIE14AE
FIATHBEXISAFERER
5 WEEHLYT LEHRAE
VAAE T 2 B & -

(c) X EETEAREMH
AEERFATEERBAEN

P&y T
2022 2021
—_E__ —EFE - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Short-term benefits % HIE A 3,157 4,277
Post-employment benefits BEEE 22 R 369 885

3,526 5,162
The remuneration of key management personnel of the NEFRTEEEAE ZHRNE

Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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33. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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33.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

METHELENEBYER

TRFBRAKEKRAREEDH
BESY BERENERE M
B BEFDELORERRSR
ERARKALREREHARS R
EXFHRABEED RS REM

BfE-

Non-cash changes

kRESE
Finance Lease

1 January  Financing costs modification 31 December
2022 cash flows incurred (note 18) 2022

=F-= & EREMN HEBX =H==
—A—H BeRg RMEHRSE (Ft3x18) +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR®BTx ARBTR
Lease liabilities ME&RE 53,453 (11,447) 2,098 (10,828) 33,276

Non-cash changes
FReEL
Finance Lease
1 January Financing costs modification 31 December
2021 cash flows incurred (note 18) 2021
—T_—% mE  DEAN MEBH —T_—F
—A—H Bemg ®EXK (fFsx18) +=ZA=+—~H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR AR®TRT ARKTR ARETTT
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,481 (12,462) 1,550 52,884 53,453
BIER(EE)ERERRAE —ZBZ=FFR8
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

34. Litigation

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former subcontractor
against Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Limited (“Bawang
Beverage”) in People’s Court of Songjiang District of Shanghai
in respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable to the
former subcontractor for an amount of approximately
RMB643,000 and a legal cost of approximately RMB19,000.
Accordingly, provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised in the profit or loss and an
amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled in 2014.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remaining
provision of approximately RMB338,000 has been waived as
Bawang Beverage was deregistered on 30 September 2022.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2022
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B)SRBERRA (B Z2HE
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FPBE—"FRARZERERR 2T —
MENAZTHAEHRKRE R B
FTHRBMERAASPEIINOAR
¥ 643,000 M BEE S MO AR
19,000 T KSR FAE © L AN » FRAART IR
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35. Principal Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. TEM B E

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December R-_E-_—_FR-_E-_—F+_4

2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and
establishment  paid-up/registered

_+—E RRBEEZWMERAFF
ERCNNE

Proportion ownership interest and

Name and operation  capital voting power held by the Company  Principal activities
ARRBAENERER
8 RIRKE Y BRTRBEESR BEEHREELH TEEY
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
HE ME BHE fl#
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited (note (b)) ~ BVI USD1 - - 100 — Inactive and deregistered on
15 December 2022
Forever Giants Limited (i E (b)) REBEZEE  Ei FRAEBEBRAE-_T=Z
+TZ AT EHHH
Bawang International Group Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding and trading of
Holding (HK) Limited household and personal care
products
BIEREEZR(FHE) B BT REERREHRRKAR
BRAA 18 A 32 2
Hong Kong Bawang International  Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Trading Limited care produots
ERBIRKRESH AR i BT EHRAREAREER
Bawang Guangzhou (note (a)) The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
household and personal care
products
EEM (@) i 5 7167,500,000 EREHXAREAERER
Bawang Beverage (note (a) and (b)) The PRC HK$180,000,000 - - - 100 Inactive and deregistered on
30 September 2022
BEHRH (7 @) K (o) HE 7% 70.180,000,000 FREEBRE-_T-_—F
AR=+THEH
Guangzhou Fanmei Electronic The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 — 100 e-Commerce and trading of
Business Company Limited* household and personal
(note (a)) care products
BMRBEFEBERAF R E AR #1,000,0007T BEFABKNEHZTAR
(P 3% (a)) BAEEER
Guangzhou Bawang Trading The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Company Limited* (note (a)) care products
BEMNBEEESAERLA Bl A E#1,000,0007T EHFARBEAEERER
(i3t (@)
* For identification purposes only * & 2 81

BIEW(EE)ERERAT —B-=FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE =T -—F+—_A=+—HILtFE

35. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) 3. TEHE A T @

Notes: B &F -

() These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) HEEBEARDBEKININEEEREADN
established in the PRC. BEREERNT

(b) Forever Giants Limited and Bawang Beverage are deregistered on 15 (b) Forever Giants Limited f1 8 T 8k B 5 B —
December 2022 and 30 September 2022 respectively. T —F+_A+HAHM=_ZE=_—FhA

=taEH-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the FERENHEAATESESRATEY

opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets EBREEEELNEENEABZHE

and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries NAEl e AR A EEREREMHHEMM

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of BARZHEBEESERNBRITEM

excessive length. P BTITR ©

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the REFhE—FEHR BHEMEM

end of both years or at any time during the years. BB AR BT EREEER -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REREBAR A EBEEMBE

wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A MEIEEANZENB AR %%

summary of these subsidiaries are as follows: B ARz BB T :

Number of subsidiaries
MELTEE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2022 2021

FEXEK FTEERMR —2=-= —E_—F

Investment holding The BVI 1 2

KEERK EEBEXHES

Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1

KREER B
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Five Years Summary

hFEMGHE

As at 31 December 2022 R=ZL==4+=-A=+—H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —E-—F ZT-FTF ZFE-hF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREBTT AREFRT ARETT
Result E
Revenue X 246,341 273,604 275,987 258,158 293,922
Loss before taxation HRAnE 8 (19,431) (9,084) (4,038) (15,164) (1,196)
Taxation I8 - — — 9,064 —
Loss for the year VINNETE7 =N
attributable to the B2 FER
owners of the Company 518 (19,431) (9,084) (4,038) (6,100) (1,196)
Assets and liabilities EENERE
Property, plant and M- BEX
equipment B 40,515 61,938 78,699 98,305 115,021
Prepaid advertising fee ~ JEfEE & A 654 850 33 — 649
Net current assets mENE EFE 29,307 25,022 65,499 53,732 50,661
Total assets less current & & 42 (& il 7 &)
liabilities afE 151,123 189,171 155,051 182,426 165,682
Net assets EEFE 126,020 145,855 154,726 158,660 165,682
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital [N 277,932 277,932 277,932 277,932 277,878
Reserves f#1E (151,912) (132,077) (123,206) (119,272) (112,196)
Total equity EREEE 126,020 145,855 154,726 158,660 165,682
Loss per share Mg B
Basic and diluted (RMB) £ 7K J 5%
(AR®) (0.0061) (0.0029) (0.0013) (0.0019) (0.0003)

BIEKR(REEZERERLTF

TECCFER
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